
WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

 
Monday, January 25, 2021 7:00 pm Zoom/Livestream 

 
AGENDA 

 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
*Consent Agenda Items 

 

I. Call to Order  ............................................................................................... Mr. McCune 
Salute to the Flag (led by Riley Powers and Kevin Tellez-Herrera 
of Hillsdale Elementary School) 

 
II. Roll Call ................................................................................................. Ms. Cherashore 

 
III. Approval of Minutes of the December 21, 2020 Monthly  

School Board Meeting....................................................................... Mr. McCune 
 

IV. Approval of the January 25, 2021 School Board Meeting Agenda .............. Mr. McCune 
 

V. Superintendent’s Report ............................................................................... Dr. Scanlon 
 Student Representatives’ Report .................... Alice Tran, East High School 
   .........Colleen Kinkead, Henderson High School 
   ........................ Davis Patel, Rustin High School 
 
VI. Public Comments on Agenda Items (submitted via google form) .......... Ms. Cherashore 

 
VII. Approval of Personnel Recommendations ...................................................... Dr. Ulmer 
 

VIII. Approval of Consent Agenda ....................................................................... Mr. McCune 
 

IX. School Board Reports 
 

Committee Reports 
 

A. Education ................................................................................................. Mrs. Tiernan 

   
 

B. Pupil Services ........................................................................................... Ms. Chester 

* 1. Approval of (1) one Special Education Settlement Agreement 

* 2. Approval of Ethos Treatment LLC Annual Contract 

* 3. Approval of Sweet, Stevens, Katz and Williams Fee Agreement 

* 4. Approval of Revised Policy 113.1 Discipline for Students with Disabilities, First 
Reading 

* 5. Approval of Revised Policy 113.2 Behavior Intervention, First Reading 

* 6. Approval of Revised Policy 113.4 Confidentiality of Special Education Student 
Information, First Reading 

 

C. Personnel ................................................................................................ Dr. Herrmann 

   



 
 
AGENDA Page 2 Monday, January 25, 2021 

 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
*Consent Agenda Items 

 

D. Property and Finance ............................................................................ Mr. Bevilacqua 

* 1. Approval of Acknowledge Receipt of 2019-20 Local Audit Report 

* 2. Approval of Contract Award for Replacement of Roof Top HVAC Units at East 
Goshen Elementary School Multi-Purpose Room 

* 3. Approval of Tax Collector Resolution 

* 4. Approval of Revised Policy 827, Conflict of Interest, First Reading 

 5. Approval of the 2021-22 Technology Projects in the Capital Reserve Fund 

 
 

 Other Reports 
A. Intermediate Unit ................................................................................... Mrs. Tiernan 
B. PSBA Report ........................................................................................ Dr. Herrmann 
C. Legislative Liaison ....................................................................................... Dr. Shaw 
D. Equity Report ........................................................................................... Mr. Durnell 
E. Community Liaison ............................................................................. Mr. Spackman 
 

X. Other Business ............................................................................................ Mr. McCune 

* 1. Approval of School Board Treasurer’s Report and Statement of Disbursements 
Summary Schedule for the Period of December 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020 

* 2. Approval of the December 31, 2020 Financial Report 

* 3. Approval of Memorandum of Agreement between the Chester County Health 
Department and the West Chester Area School District regarding participation 
in the Project Assisting Childhood Education through Increased Testing (ACE-
IT) 

 4. Approval of motion to approve the Skills for Life Charter School Application, as 
amended and supplemented 

 5. Approval of motion to deny the Skills for Life Charter School Application, as 
amended and supplemented 

 
XI. Comments from Residents (submitted via google form) 

 

XII. Adjournment 



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL BOARD—Meeting of December 21, 2020 

Documents previously distributed to Board Members are not recopied or submitted with 
this draft. Minutes of this meeting, in compliance with Section 518 of the School Laws of 
Pennsylvania and after approval by the School Board Members will be transcribed into 
the permanent minute book together with reports indicated (copy in). Routine reports and 
lengthy multi-page documents made a part of the minutes of this meeting are filed 
separately for permanent record. 
 
 

I. Call to Order 

The West Chester Area School Board met at 7:01 p.m. in the Spellman Education 
Center, 782 Springdale Dr. Exton, PA. Mr. McCune, Board President, called the meeting 
to order and led the public in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

II. Roll Call  
Members Present:  Mr. Bevilacqua, Ms. Chester, Mr. Durnell, Mr. Gallen, Dr. Herrmann, 
Mr. McCune, Dr. Shaw, Mr. Spackman, Mrs. Tiernan. Student Representatives: Alice 
Tran, East High School; Colleen Kinkead, Henderson High School; Davis Patel, Rustin 
High School. 
 
Members Absent: 
 

III. Approval of the Minutes of the November 23, 2020 Monthly School 
Board Meeting and the December 7, 2020 Annual Organization Meeting 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Mrs. Tiernan and seconded by Mr. Gallen to approve 
the minutes of the November 23, 2020 monthly School Board Meeting and the 
December 7, 2020 Annual Organization Meeting.  
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 9-0. 
 
 
Mr. McCune announced that the Board met in Executive Session on Monday, 
December 21, 2020 regarding a personnel matter.  
 
 

Approval to amend the December 21, 2020 Meeting Agenda 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Mr. Bevilacqua and seconded by Mr. Gallen to 

amend the December 21, 2020 Meeting Agenda as follows: Removal of Property & 
Finance Action Item D3-Approval of ACT 1 Resolution to Publicize the District’s Intent to 
Obtain PDE’s Approval of Exceptions for the 2021-2022 Budget and Item D4-Approval of 
ACT 1 Resolution to Acknowledge Release of 2021-22 Preliminary Budget & to 
Advertise District’s Intent to Adopt the 2021-2022 Budget at Least 10 Days Prior to 
Adoption. 



December 21, 2020 

 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 9-0. 
 
 

IV. Approval of the December 21, 2020 School Board Meeting Agenda as 
amended 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Mr. Spackman and seconded by Mr. Bevilacqua to 
approve the December 21, 2020 meeting agenda as amended. 
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 9-0. 
 
 

V. Superintendent’s Report 
Superintendent Scanlon and the High School Student Representatives gave monthly reports. 

 

VI. Public Comments on Agenda Items 
Dr. Sokolowski read public comments on agenda items received via google form. The 
comments will be included in their entirety in the meeting minutes. 
 

VII. Approval of Personnel Recommendations—Dr. Ulmer (Copy In) 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Ms. Chester and seconded by Mr. Gallen to approve 
the Personnel Recommendations as presented.  
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 9-0. 

 
 

VIII. Approval of Consent Agenda 
 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Mrs. Tiernan and seconded by Mr. Spackman to 
approve the following Consent Agenda Items:  
 

Education 

1. Approval to Establish the following Account(s): 
-East HS Class of 2024 
-Henderson HS DMI (Defying Mental Illness) 
-Henderson HS Family Reach 

2. Approval to Terminate the following Account(s): 
-Henderson High School Rotary-Interact 

3. Approval of 2021-2022 School Calendar, Second Reading 

4. Approval of Revised Administrative Guideline 918AG2 Title I Parent and Family 
Engagement School-Parent and Family Compacts, Second Reading 

 
Pupil Services 
  



December 21, 2020 

Personnel 
  

Property & Finance 
 

Other Business 

1. Approval of School Board Treasurer’s Report and Statement of 
Disbursements Summary Schedule for the Period of November 1, 2020 to 
November 30, 2020 

2. Approval of the November 30, 2020 Financial Report 
3. Approval of Revisions to Phased School Reopening Health and Safety Plan for 

SY 2020-21 
 
On roll call vote to approve the above Consent Agenda Items, all members present 
voted “aye.” Motion carried 9-0. 
 

IX. School Board Reports 
  
Property and Finance Committee—Mr. Bevilacqua 

 
D-1.  Approval of 2021-22 Capital Fund Projects  

BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Mr. Bevilacqua and seconded by Mr. Gallen to 
approve 2021-22 Capital Fund Projects not to exceed $1,311,272. 
 
Location Project Description Budget 

 Rustin High School  Phase 2 - sloped roof 
replacement  

$ 1,400,000  
($88,728 over budget)  

 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 9-0. 
 

D-2.  Approval of 2021-22 Capital Reserve Projects 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Mr. Bevilacqua and seconded by Dr. Herrmann to 
approve 2021-22 Capital Reserve Projects not to exceed $2,011,500. 
 
 Location  Project Description  Budget  
District-wide  Emergency Repairs  $ 110,000  
District-wide  District-wide Roof Survey  $ 50,000  
Faciltites  Install Automatic Loading Dock Plate  $ 13,000  
Faciltites  Install new Gas & Diesel Tanks with Containment Dike  $ 95,000  
East HS  Upgrading Stadium Lights to LED  $ 200,000  
Henderson HS  Replace 2 Chillers  $ 680,000  
Henderson HS  LED fixtures in Gymnasium (material only - staff installed)  $ 75,000  
Rustin HS  Gymnasium Curtain Replacement  $ 48,500  
Rustin HS  Library Carpet Replacement  $ 52,000  
Rustin HS  Concrete Paving Replacement at Loading Dock  $ 56,000  



December 21, 2020 

Peirce MS  Flooring Replacement (Computer, Music, Choir Rooms)  $ 60,000  
Peirce MS  Select Paving Replacement (Bus Lane alligatoring)  $ 125,000  
Stetson MS  Flooring Replacement (Computer, Music, Choir Rooms)  $ 60,000  
Exton ES  Replace Shingles on Roof of old Gym wing and Cafeteria  $ 250,000  
Hillsdale ES  Replace Drain and Piping from Kindergarten Playground 

Area  
$ 42,000  

Starkweather ES  Emergency Generator Replacement  $ 95,000  
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 9-0. 
 
 

D-5. Approval of ACT 1 Resolution for Inflation Index Budget Limit  
 

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Resolution for Act 1 Inflation Index Budget Limit  

 
WHEREAS, The “Taxpayer Relief Act”, Act 1 of 2006, 53 P.S. §6926.101 et seq., as 

amended, requires school districts to limit tax increases to the level set by an inflation 

index unless the tax increase is approved by voters in a referendum or the school district 

obtains from the Department of Education certain referendum exceptions; 

WHEREAS, Act 1 permits a board of school directors to elect to adopt a resolution, as set 

forth in 53 P.S. § 6926.311(d), indicating that it will not raise the rate of any tax for the 

support of the public schools for the following fiscal year by more than its index, provided 

this resolution must be adopted no later than January 28, 2021; 

WHEREAS, the West Chester Area School District index for the 2021-2022 fiscal year is 

3.0%; 

WHEREAS, the West Chester Area School District Board of School Directors has made 

the decision that it shall not raise the rate of any tax for the support of the West Chester 

Area School District for the 2021-2022 fiscal year by more than its index. 

AND NOW, on this 21st day of December 2020, it is hereby RESOLVED by the West 

Chester Area School District (“District”) Board of School Directors (“Board”) that: 

1. The Board certifies that it will not increase any school district tax for the 2021-2022 
school year at a rate that exceeds the index as calculated by the Pennsylvania 
Department of Education. 
 

2. The Board certifies that it will comply with the procedures set forth in Section 687, 
of the Pennsylvania Public School Code (“School Code”), 24 P.S. §6-687, for the 
adoption of its proposed and final budgets.  
 



December 21, 2020 

3. The Board certifies that increasing any tax at a rate less than or equal to the index 
will be sufficient to balance its final budget for the 2021-2022 fiscal year. 
 

4. The Administration of the District will submit the District’s information on a proposed 
increase in the rate of a tax levied for the support of the District to the Pennsylvania 
Department of Education on the uniform form prepared by the Pennsylvania 
Department of Education no later than five (5) days after the Board’s adoption of 
this Resolution. 
 

5. The Administration of the District will send a copy of this Resolution to the 
Pennsylvania Department of Education no later than five (5) days after the Board’s 
adoption of this Resolution. 
 

6. The Board understands and agrees that by passing this Resolution it is not eligible 
to seek referendum exceptions under 53 P.S. § 6926.333(f) and is not eligible to 
request approval from the voters through a referendum to increase a tax rate by 
more than the index as established for the 2021-2022 fiscal year. 
 

7. Once this Resolution is passed, the Administration of the District is not required to 
comply with the preliminary budget requirements set forth in paragraphs (a) and (c) 
of 53 P.S. § 6926.311. Provided, however: 
 

a. The Board understands and agrees that, upon receipt of the information 
submitted by the District as set forth in paragraphs 4 and 5 above, the 
Pennsylvania Department of Education shall compare the District’s 
proposed percentage increase in the rate of the tax with the index. 
 

b. Within ten (10) days of the receipt of this information, the Pennsylvania 
Department of Education shall inform the District whether its proposed tax 
rate increase is less than or equal to the index. 

 

c. If the Pennsylvania Department of Education determines that the District’s 
proposed increase in the rate of the District’s tax exceeds the index, the 
District is subject to the preliminary budget requirements as set forth in 
paragraph (a) and (c) of 53 P.S. § 6926.311. 

 
 

ATTEST:     WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL BOARD 

___________________________By:_______________________________ 

  Secretary      President 

BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Mr. Bevilacqua and seconded by Mr. Gallen to 
approve the Act I Resolution for the inflation index budget limit. 
 



December 21, 2020 

 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 9-0. 
 

X. Other Business 
There were no other business regular agenda items this month. 

 

XI. Comments from Residents 
Dr. Sokolowski read public comments on non-agenda items received via google form. 
The comments will be included in their entirety in the meeting minutes. 
 
Mr. McCune read the following quote: “Remember that the happiest people are not those 
getting more, but those giving more.” ~ H. Jackson Brown, Jr.” 

  

XII. Adjournment 
BOARD ACTION: On motion by Mr. Bevilacqua, seconded by Mr. Gallen, the Board, on 
voice vote, agreed to adjourn at 7:50 p.m.  
 
 
 

 

Board Secretary 
 
 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda - January 25, 2021 - p.1 

 
 

I. Removal from Payroll 

a. Resignations 

1. Desmond Alston, 1.0 Custodian at East HS/Temporary Paraprofessional, effective 
12/30/20. 

    2.    Shannon Braccia, Grade 1 LTS Teacher at Mary C. Howse, effective 1/22/21. 

3. Albert (AJ) Esposito, .4 LTS Social Studies Teacher at Stetson MS, effective 
12/22/20. 

    4. Tristan McGuire, 1.0 Biology Teacher at East HS, effective 3/19/21. 

    5. Nicolette Trofa, Grade 4 Teacher at Exton ES, effective TBD. 

                                                                        

b. Retirements 

1. Joan Devlin, Certified School Nurse at East HS, effective 1/25/21.  14 years of 
service.  

    2. Harry Pitts, 1.0 Custodian at Rustin HS, effective 6/30/21.  8 years of service. 

3. Kevin Stewart, Custodian at Rustin HS, effective 7/9/21.  15 years of service. 

 
II. Additions to Payroll 

a. Professional Staff: Contract  

   1. Stephanie Riely 

 Placement 1.0 Teacher (.5 Gifted Resource/.5 Art) at Peirce MS, Temporary 
Professional Employee (Non-Tenured), effective TBD, Level 3, Step 
2, $51,400. 

 Education Bachelor of Arts from West Chester University of Pennsylvania 2013-
2017, Art Education Certification from Arcadia University 2018-2020 

 Experience Job Trainer at Chester County Intermediate Unit 8/2019 - current 

 Certification Instructional I, Art K-12 

 

b. Professional Staff: Long Term Substitute 

1. Madisyn Aman 

 Placement .4 Social Studies Teacher at Stetson MS, Temporary Professional 
Employee (Non-Tenured), effective TBD, Level 1, Step 1, $18,400.  
During Ms. Novotny’s leave of absence. 

 Education Bachelor of Science from Pennsylvania State University 2016-2020 

 Experience Grade 12 Global Relations Long Term Substitute at Central Bucks 
High School East 9/2020 – 11/2020 

 Certification Instructional I, Social Studies 

  

   2. Rebecca Lawless 

 Placement 1.0 Kindergarten Teacher at Westtown-Thornbury ES, Temporary 
Professional Employee (Non-Tenured), effective 10/19/20, Level 1, 
Step 1, $46,000.  During Ms. Novotny’s leave of absence. 

 Education Bachelor of Arts from Neumann College 2012-2016, Master of 
Science from Gwynedd-Mercy College 2017-2019 

 Experience Building Substitute with InSight 2019-current 

 Certification Instructional I, Grades PK-4 

 

   3. Joshua Wilkins 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda - January 25, 2021 - p.2 

 
 Placement 1.0 Math Teacher at East HS, Temporary Professional Employee 

(Non-Tenured), effective 1/21/21, Level 1, Step 1, $46,000.  During 
Ms. Warrington’s leave of absence. 

 Education Bachelor of Arts from Temple University 1999-2004, J.D. from Penn 
State Dickinson School of Law 2008-2011, Bachelor of Science from 
West Chester University of Pennsylvania, 2018-2020. 

 Experience None 

 Certification Instructional I, Mathematics 7-12 

 

c. Administrative Staff: Contract - None 

 

d. Support Staff: Non Bargaining - None 

 

e. Support Staff: Contract 

1. Katie Lasater 

 Placement 1.0 Security Greeter at East HS, 8 hrs./day, 5 days/week, 182 
days/year, effective TBD, Group 1, Step 2, $12.99. 

   

2. Kristina McNichol 

 Placement 1.0 2nd Shift Custodian at District, 8 hrs./day, 5 days/week, 260 
days/year, effective 2/1/21, Group 5, Step 1, $18.30. 

   

    3. KerryLynn Resnick 

 Placement 1.0 Paraprofessional at Hillsdale ES, 7 hrs./day, 5 days/week, 182 
days/year, effective TBD, Group 1B, Step 3, $13.56. 

 

f. Support Staff: Substitute - None 

 
 

III. Personnel Events 
a. Status Change 

 
Name Type From To 

Effective 
Date 

1. Dr. Stephen 
Brown 

Administrative 1.0 Assistant 
Principal at East 
HS 

1.0 Principal 
at East HS 

3/1/21 

2. Dr. Christine 
Eagles 

Administrative 1.0 Supervisor of 
Equity, ELD, and 
World Languages 
at SEC 

1.0 Assistant 
Principal at 
Rustin HS 

2/1/21 

   3. Dr. Kevin 
Fagan 

Administrative 1.0 Principal at 
East HS 

1.0 Principal 
at Greystone 
ES 

3/1/21 

4. Dr. Richard 
Mitchell 

Administrative 1.0 Supervisor of 
English/Language 
Arts at SEC 

1.0 Assistant 
Principal at 
Fugett MS 

1/11/21 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda - January 25, 2021 - p.3 

 
 

Name Type From To 
Effective 

Date 

   5. Jacqueline 
Pavlo 

Administrative 1.0 Grade 5 
Teacher at Exton 
ES 

1.0 Assistant 
Principal at 
Fugett MS 

1/26/21 

 
b. Involuntary Transfer 

 
Name Type From To 

Effective 
Date 

1. Amanda 
Cinnamond 

Professional .8 Gifted 
Resource 
Teacher at 
Fugett MS/.2 
Gifted Resource 
Teacher at East 
Bradford ES 

1.0 Gifted 
Resource 
Teacher at East 
Bradford ES 

1/14/21 

2. Dr. Philip 
Matilla 

Administrative 1.0 Assistant 
Principal at 
Fugett MS 

1.0 Assistant 
Principal at 
Peirce MS 

1/11/21 

3. Todd Saundurs Professional .8 Math Teacher 
at Stetson 
MS/.2 Math at 
Cyber Program 

1.0 Gifed 
Resource 
Teacher at 
Fugett MS 

1/11/21 

      

 
c. Voluntary Transfer 

 
Name Type From To 

Effective 
Date 

1. Erica 
Oberholtzer 

Professional .8 Special 
Education at 
Peirce MS/.2 
Special 
Education at 
Cyber Academy 

1.0 Physical 
Education at 
Cyber Program 

1/27/21 

 
 
IV. Personnel Leave 

a. Sabbatical Leave 

 Name Position Effective Date Ending Date 

1. Lindsey 
Phillips 

1.0 Special Education 
Teacher at Fern Hill ES 

1/26/2021  End of 2020-2021 
School Year 

2. Kathryn 
Spratt 

Reading Specialist at 
Fern Hill ES 

8/2021 End of 2021-2022 
School Year 

 
b. Unpaid Leave 

 Name Position Effective Date Ending Date 

1. Karen Heym .6 RN at District 1/4/2021 End of 2020-2021 
School Year 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda - January 25, 2021 - p.4 

 
 
V. Additional Information 

1. Madelyn Antal’s start date was 1/4/2021. 

   2. Dr. Kristen Barnello should receive $5,000 for her work in the Secondary Cyber 
Program for December, 2020 ($2,500) and January, 2021 ($2,500). 

   3. Melissa Donlevie’s start date is 1/25/21. 

   4. Dr. Rebecca Eberly should receive $5,000 for her work in Elementary Cyber Program 
for December, 2020 ($2,500) and January, 2021 ($2,500). 

   5. Dawn Mader’s position to Director of Equity and Assessment is effective 2/1/21. 

6. Emily Patterson’s start date was 1/4/2021. 

   7. Mary Kay Puchalla’s start date for her position as Principal of Stetson was 12/22/20. 

   8. Rebecca Saunders’ start date is 1/25/21. 

9. Awarding of Tenure: The following professional employees have performed 
satisfactory work during the last four months of the third year of their service. I 
recommend they be given tenure status: 

Megan Doran 
Sarah Shapard 

  
10. 

In accordance with the PA State Auditor’s recommendation, the following list of 
drivers, employed by our transportation contractors Krapf’s and On the Go Kids, 
require School Board approval.  The credentials and security clearances for each of 
these drivers has been verified to be in compliance with our transportation carrier 
contracts and have been vetted through the WCASD Transportation Office: 

KRAPF-none 
 

On the Go Kids 

First Name Last Name Driver/Aide 

Shirley Ayres Driver 

Alen Bangoura Aide 

Johnette Crutchfield Driver 

Edward Gilken Driver 

Carol Kyle Aide 

Joann Melton Aide 
 

 
 
VI. Supplemental Contracts 
 

Last Name First Name Location Season Step 
% of 

Contract 
Total 

Contract Position Title 

’20-‘21 
Additions:        
Peters Rebecca FMS Winter 1 100% $2,464.00 Asst. Wrestling Coach 

Bauer Nathan EHS Spring 2 100% $3,780.00 Asst. Boys Lacrosse Coach 

Cini Alanna EHS Spring 2 100% $3,780.00 Asst. Girls Lacrosse Coach 

Costin Doug EHS Spring 7 100% $6,465.00 Head Girls Track Coach 

Dunn Michael EHS Spring 6 100% $4,872.00 Asst. Boys Lacrosse Coach 

Fleming John EHS Spring 4 100% $5,520.00 Head Baseball Coach 

Fuertes Marc EHS Spring 4 100% $4,416.00 Asst. Softball Coach 

Garvin Kevan EHS Spring 4 100% $4,416.00 Asst. Girls Track Coach 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda - January 25, 2021 - p.5 

 

Last Name First Name Location Season Step 
% of 

Contract 
Total 

Contract Position Title 

Knight Ryan EHS Spring 2 100% $3,780.00 Asst. Boys Track Coach 

Lanier Kareem EHS Spring 4 100% $5,520.00 Head Boys Track Coach 

Lasater Katie EHS Spring 3 100% $3,888.00 Asst. Girls Lacrosse Coach 

Leicht Daniel EHS Spring 3 50% $1,944.00 Asst. Baseball Coach 

Longen Timothy EHS Spring 3 50% $1,944.00 Asst. Baseball Coach 

Lorback Todd EHS Spring 5 100% $1,143.00 Spring Intramurals 

Mashbitz Jeffrey EHS Spring 5 100% $4,572.00 Asst. Softball Coach 

Orenshaw Michael EHS Spring 6 100% $4,872.00 Asst. Boys Tennis Coach 

Patt Alexander EHS Spring 4 50% $2,208.00 Asst. Baseball Coach 

Pinder Jeffrey EHS Spring 1 65% $2,402.40 Asst. Baseball Coach 

Pinder Mitch EHS Spring 1 35% $1,293.60 Asst. Baseball Coach 

Rice Jessica EHS Spring 1 100% $4,928.00 Head Girls Lacrosse Coach 

Santonastaso Anthony EHS Spring 4 100% $5,520.00 Head Boys Tennis Coach 

Schorn James EHS Spring 4 100% $5,888.00 
Head Boys Lacrosse 
Coach 

Swier Robert EHS Spring 4 100% $5,520.00 Head Softball Coach 

Swiggett Julian EHS Spring 3 50% $1,944.00 Asst. Baseball Coach 

Wiggins James EHS Spring 4 100% $4,416.00 Asst. Girls Track Coach 

Wilson Lindsay EHS Spring 4 100% $4,416.00 Asst. Softball Coach 

        

Boyer Kathleen HHS Spring 3 100% $3,888.00 Asst. Boys Track Coach 

Burns Kelly HHS Spring 3 100% $3,888.00 Asst. Baseball Coach 

Cummings Joel HHS Spring 5 100% $4,572.00 Asst. Softball Coach 

Dudley Bruce HHS Spring 4 100% $4,416.00 Asst. Softball Coach 

Evans Sean HHS Spring 5 100% $4,572.00 Asst. Boys Lacrosse Coach 

Fitch Steven HHS Spring 7 100% $5,172.00 Asst. Baseball Coach 

Graf David HHS Spring 4 100% $4,416.00 Asst. Baseball Coach 

Hessler Christopher HHS Spring 4 100% $5,520.00 Head Softball Coach 

Johnson Bryan HHS Spring 6 100% $4,872.00 Asst. Girls Track Coach 

Kelly Kevin HHS Spring 7 20% $1,293.00 Head Boys Track Coach 

Kelly Kevin HHS Spring 7 100% $6,465.00 Head Girls Track Coach 

Malizia Grace HHS Spring 4 100% $4,416.00 Asst. Girls Lacrosse Coach 

Marabella Brandon HHS Spring 4 100% $1,104.00 Spring Intramurals 

Marks Bob HHS Spring 7 100% $5,172.00 Asst. Boys Lacrosse Coach 

McGeehan Gary HHS Spring 2 100% $3,780.00 Asst. Boys Tennis Coach 

McNichol Michael HHS Spring 7 100% $6,465.00 Head Baseball Coach 

Mullen Lauren HHS Spring 4 100% $5,888.00 Head Girls Lacrosse Coach 

Rairigh Max HHS Spring 7 100% $5,172.00 Asst. Boys Lacrosse Coach 

Ronayne Jennifer HHS Spring 4 100% $4,416.00 Asst. Girls Track Coach 

Shoemaker Josiah HHS Spring 2 100% $3,780.00 Asst. Softball Coach 

Sok Peter HHS Spring 7 100% $6,465.00 Head Boys Tennis Coach 

Stankewicz Paul HHS Spring 7 100% $6,896.00 
Head Boys Lacrosse 
Coach 

Thompson Michael HHS Spring 4 100% $4,416.00 Asst. Boys Track Coach 

Wilson Charles HHS Spring 1 80% $3,696.00 Head Boys Track Coach 

        



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda - January 25, 2021 - p.6 

 

Last Name First Name Location Season Step 
% of 

Contract 
Total 

Contract Position Title 

Alvanitakis John RHS Spring 6 100% $4,872.00 Asst. Softball Coach 

Bair Maxwell RHS Spring 2 60% $2,268.00 Asst. Boys Lacrosse Coach 

Becker Dennis RHS Spring 2 100% $4,725.00 Head Softball Coach 

Brandon Lee RHS Spring 6 50% $2,436.00 Asst. Baseball Coach 

Brown Danielle RHS Spring 3 100% $3,888.00 Asst. Girls Lacrosse Coach 

Brown Shaz RHS Spring 7 100% $6,465.00 Head Boys Track Coach 

Chambers Paul RHS Spring 5 200% $2,286.00 Spring Intramurals 

Collins James RHS Spring 4 100% $5,520.00 Head Girls Track Coach 

D'Urbano Robert RHS Spring 5 100% $4,572.00 Asst. Baseball Coach 

Esworthy Conor RHS Spring 3 80% $3,110.40 Asst. Boys Lacrosse Coach 

Hameed Steven RHS Spring 3 100% $3,888.00 Asst. Boys Track Coach 

Harkins Brad RHS Spring 7 100% $6,465.00 Head Baseball Coach 

Hoffman Mitchell RHS Spring 5 50% $2,286.00 Asst. Baseball Coach 

Huboky Thomas RHS Spring 2 60% $2,268.00 Asst. Boys Lacrosse Coach 

King Nichole RHS Spring 4 100% $4,416.00 Asst. Softball Coach 

Leister Ryan RHS Spring 6 100% $4,872.00 Asst. Boys Lacrosse Coach 

Maginnis Deborah RHS Spring 4 100% $4,416.00 Asst. Girls Lacrosse Coach 

McElroy William RHS Spring 4 100% $5,520.00 Head Boys Tennis Coach 

Mohring Michael RHS Spring 6 100% $4,872.00 Asst. Boys Tennis Coach 

Philibin Kevin RHS Spring 5 100% $6,096.00 
Head Boys Lacrosse 
Coach 

Richard David RHS Spring 7 100% $5,172.00 Asst. Boys Track Coach 

Smith David RHS Spring 4 100% $4,416.00 Asst. Girls Track Coach 

St. Clair Michael RHS Spring 7 100% $6,896.00 Head Girls Lacrosse Coach 

Wittman Greg RHS Spring 4 100% $4,416.00 Asst. Baseball Coach 

Wright Taylor RHS Spring 3 100% $3,888.00 Asst. Softball Coach 

        

Abbott Shayna FMS Spring 5 100% $1,143.00 6th Grade Volleyball Coach 

Agudelo Christian FMS Spring 1 100% $2,156.00 Asst. Softball Coach 

Atkins Christopher FMS Spring 1 100% $2,156.00 Asst. Baseball Coach 

DeLeo Kimberly FMS Spring 3 100% $2,268.00 Asst. Girls Lacrosse Coach 

Gilligan Gregory FMS Spring 1 100% $2,772.00 
Boys Head Lacrosse 
Coach 

Giordano Benjamin FMS Spring 1 100% $2,772.00 Head Baseball Coach 

Giuliano Robbi FMS Spring 2 100% $2,835.00 Head Softball Coach 

Murawski Sandra FMS Spring 5 100% $1,143.00 6th Grade Track Coach 

Peters Rebecca FMS Spring 2 100% $2,520.00 Asst. Track Coach 

Subasic Kelly FMS Spring 4 100% $3,312.00 Head Girls Lacrosse Coach 

Tancredi Kimberly FMS Spring 4 100% $2,944.00 Asst. Track Coach 

        

Atkins John PMS Spring 4 100% $1,104.00 6th Grade Track Coach 

Bryan Tim PMS Spring 6 100% $3,654.00 Head Softball Coach 

Dumas Michael PMS Spring 5 100% $3,429.00 Head Track Coach 

Jenkins Stephen PMS Spring 7 100% $3,879.00 Head Baseball Coach 

Kimberling Doug PMS Spring 7 100% $1,293.00 6th Grade Volleyball Coach 

Lockhart Nicole PMS Spring 1 100% $2,156.00 Asst. Girls Lacrosse Coach 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda - January 25, 2021 - p.7 

 

Last Name First Name Location Season Step 
% of 

Contract 
Total 

Contract Position Title 

Lorback Denise PMS Spring 7 100% $3,879.00 Head Girls Lacrosse Coach 

McDaid James PMS Spring 2 100% $2,520.00 Asst. Track Coach 

Yost Loralynne PMS Spring 4 100% $2,944.00 Asst. Track Coach 

        

Ascareggi James SMS Spring 3 100% $2,916.00 Head Softball Coach 

Busz Gerald SMS Spring 3 100% $2,268.00 Asst. Softball Coach 

Chavarria Courtney SMS Spring 2 100% $2,835.00 Head Girls Lacrosse Coach 

Cherubino Marshall SMS Spring 2 100% $2,205.00 Asst. Girls Lacrosse Coach 

Costin Tina SMS Spring 7 100% $1,293.00 6th Grade Volleyball Coach 

Egleston Amanda SMS Spring 1 100% $2,464.00 Asst. Track Coach 

Graham John SMS Spring 1 100% $2,772.00 
Head Boys Lacrosse 
Coach 

Kelley Donald SMS Spring 7 100% $3,017.00 Asst. Baseball Coach 

Loescher-
Velazquez David SMS Spring 5 100% $1,143.00 6th Grade Track Coach 

Logan Andrew SMS Spring 6 100% $3,654.00 Head Baseball Coach 

Specht Christian SMS Spring 4 100% $2,944.00 Asst. Track Coach 

White Andrew SMS Spring 6 100% $3,654.00 Head Track Coach 

        

Removals:         

Lindros Brian EHS Annual N/A 80% $2,684.80 Dept. Chair: Guidance 

Adjustments:       
Setlock Yvonne EHS Annual N/A 70% $2,296.00 Dept. Chair: Guidance 

 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda –ADDENDUM – January 25, 2021. p.1 

 
 
 

I. Removals from Payroll 
a. Resignations 

6. Catherine Hostetter, ELA Long Term Substitute Teacher at Stetson MS, effective 
2/5/21. 

  
b. Retirements - None 

 
II. Additions to Payroll  
a. Professional Staff: Contract - None 

 
b. Professional Staff: Long Term Substitute 

 4. Delaney Bowes 

 Placement 1.0 School Counselor at Penn Wood ES, Temporary Professional 
Employee (Non-Tenured), effective TBD, Level 1, Step 1, 
$46,000.  During Ms. Salley’s leave of absence. 

 Education Bachelor of Arts from west Chester University of Pennsylvania 
2013-2015, Master of Education from West Chester University of 
Pennsylvania 2015-2018 

 Experience Director of Guidance at Monsignor Bonner and Archbishop 
Prendergast Catholic High School 1/7/19 – current, Substitute 
Teacher for STS at Loomis Elementary School 10/2018 – 
12/2018, Instructional Assistant-Multiple Disabilities Classroom at 
CCIU 6/2018-8/2018, School Counseling Internship at West 
Chester Area School District 9/2018 – 12/2018 

 Certification Educational Specialist I, Secondary School Counselor; 
Elementary School Counselor 

   

 5. Emily Paladino                                                                 

 Placement 1.0 Art Teacher at Exton ES, Temporary Professional Employee 
(Non-Tenured), effective TBD, Level 1, Step 1, $46,000.  During 
Ms. Teodecki’s leave of absence. 

 Education Bachelor of Arts from Temple University 2016,2019 

 Experience Substitute Teacher with Kelly Services - current 

 Certification Instructional I, Art K-12 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
c. Administrative Staff: Contract - None 
d. Support Staff: Contract - None 
e. Support Staff: Substitute - None 

 
III. Personnel Events 

a. Status Change - None 
b. Transfer - None 

    
IV. Personnel Leave 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda –ADDENDUM – January 25, 2021. p.2 

 
 

a. Sabbatical Leave - None 
b. Unpaid Leave - None 

  
V. Additional Information 

1. Madisyn Aman’s Long Term Substitute position is for Kelly Fransciscus. 

2. Devon Patton’s start date is 1/28/21. 

3. Jacqueline Pavlos’s salary for the Assistant Principal position is $106,487. 

4. Stephanie Riely’s start date is 1/25/21. 

 
VI. Supplemental Contracts - None 



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

 
Monday, January 25, 2021           7:00 PM Zoom/Livestream 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

I recommend the Board approve the following consent agenda items: 

IX.  School Board Reports 

 
Education 

  

  
Pupil Services 

1. Approval of (1) one Special Education Settlement Agreement 
2. Approval of Ethos Treatment LLC Annual Contract 
3. Approval of Sweet, Stevens, Katz and Williams Fee Agreement 
4. Approval of Revised Policy 113.1 Discipline for Students with Disabilities, First 

Reading 
5. Approval of Revised Policy 113.2 Behavior Intervention, First Reading 
6. Approval of Revised Policy 113.4 Confidentiality of Special Education Student 

Information, First Reading 
  

Personnel 
  
  

Property & Finance 
1. Approval of Acknowledge Receipt of 2019-20 Local Audit Report 
2. Approval of Contract Award for Replacement of Roof Top HVAC Units at East 

Goshen Elementary School Multi-Purpose Room 
3. Approval of Tax Collector Resolution 
4. Approval of Revised Policy 827, Conflict of Interest, First Reading 

  
 
X. Other Business 

1. Approval of School Board Treasurer’s Report and Statement of Disbursements 
Summary Schedule for the Period of December 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020 

2. Approval of the December 31, 2020 Financial Report 
3. Approval of Memorandum of Agreement between the Chester County Health 

Department and the West Chester Area School District regarding participation in the 
Project Assisting Childhood Education through Increased Testing (ACE-IT) 

  
 

Responsible Staff: Dr. Scanlon 
 

Background   
These action items are either routine or high consensus items and may not require discussion 
by the Board. If any Board member wishes to discuss any action item, the Board President will 
move it from the consent agenda to its appropriate place on the regular agenda. 

 



 

 

 

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Education Committee  

 

January 11, 2021 
Virtual Meeting 

Start: 6:33 PM – Finish: 7:58 PM  
 

 

Attending Committee Members:  

 ☒ Sue Tiernan (Chair), ☒ Joyce Chester, ☒ Daryl Durnell, ☒ Kate Shaw 

 
Other Board Members: 

  ☐ Gary Bevilacqua, ☐ Brian Gallen, ☒ Karen Herrmann, ☐ Chris McCune, 

 ☒ Randell Spackman 

 
Administration: 

 ☒ Jim Scanlon, ☒ Robert Sokolowski, ☒ Sara Missett, ☒ Tammi Florio, ☒ Michael 

Wagman, ☒ Leigh Ann Ranieri, ☒ Kristen Barnello, ☒ Steven Werner, ☒ Deb Whitmire, 

☒ Rich Mitchell, ☒ Chrissy Eagles, ☒ Paul Joyce, ☒ Ian Kerr 

 
 

Items on Agenda- 

 Approval of the November 9, 2020 Education Committee Meeting Minutes 

 Curriculum Proposal Requests for 2021-2022 

 December 2020 Effectiveness Measures Update 
 
 
January Education Committee Agenda Item actions/outcomes to be placed on January 25 
Agenda for Board Approval: 

Agenda Item Vote 

Approval of the Education Committee Meeting Minutes – November 9, 
2020 (see attached) 

4 - 0 

 Vote 

 
 

January Board Consent Agenda Items: 

 Approval to Establish - None 

 Approval to Terminate - None 

 Approval of the following Study/Excursion Trip: None 

 

D. Items to be discussed at a later date: None 



 

  

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Pupil Services Committee 

January 25, 2021 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 
 
Approval of (1) one Special Education Settlement Agreement 
Approval is requested of (1) one Special Education Settlement Agreement. 
 
I so move. 
 
 
Approval of the Ethos Treatment LLC Contract 
Approval is requested of the Ethos Treatment LLC Contract. 
 
I so move. 
 
 
Approval of the Sweet, Stevens, Katz and Williams Fee Agreement 
Approval is requested of the Sweet, Stevens, Katz and Williams Fee Agreement. 
 
I so move. 

 
 
Approval of Revised Policy 113.1 Discipline for Students with Disabilities, First 
Reading 
Approval is requested of Revised Policy 113.1 Discipline for Students with Disabilities, 
First Reading. 
 

I so move. 

 
 
Approval of Revised Policy 113.2 Behavior Intervention, First Reading 
Approval is requested of Revised Policy 113.2 Behavior Intervention, First Reading. 
 
I so move. 

 
 
Approval of Revised Policy 113.4 Confidentiality of Special Education Student 
Information, First Reading 
Approval is requested of Revised Policy 113.4 Confidentiality of Special Education 
Student Information, First Reading. 
 
I so move. 



Pupil Services Meeting Minutes 

January 11, 2021 

Pupil Services Committee Meeting 

 

 

Ms. Chester opened the meeting at 7:59 pm.  

 

Attending Committee Members: Joyce Chester, Sue Tiernan, Daryl Durnell, Kate Shaw 

 

Other Board Members: Chris McCune, Randell Spackman, Karen Hermann, Chris McCune 

 

Administration: Tammi Florio, Robert Sokolowski, Sara Missett, Michael Wagman, Jim 

Scanlon 

Items listed on the agenda: 

 November 9, 2020 Committee Meeting Minutes   

 Ethos Treatment LLC Contract     

 Sweet, Stevens, Katz and Williams Fee Agreement      

 Policy Revisions: 
o 113.1 Discipline for Students with Disabilities 
o 113.2 Behavior Interventions 
o 113.4 Confidentiality of Special Education Student Information 

        
Actions and Outcomes:  

 Approval of the November 9, 2020 Committee Meeting Minutes Vote: 4-0 

 Approval of the Ethos Treatment LLC Contract Vote: 4-0 

 Approval of the Sweet, Stevens, Katz and Williams Fee Agreement Vote: 4-0 

 Approval of the following policies first read Vote: 4-0 

o 113.1 Discipline for Students with Disabilities 
o 113.2 Behavior Interventions 
o 113.4 Confidentiality of Special Education Student Information 

   

Items to be placed on upcoming Board Agenda: none 

 

Items to be placed on the Consent Agenda: 

 Ethos Treatment LLC Contract 

 Sweet, Stevens, Katz and Williams Fee Agreement 

 The following policies first reading: 

o 113.1 Discipline for Students with Disabilities 
o 113.2 Behavior Interventions 
o 113.4 Confidentiality of Special Education Student Information 

 

Items to be discussed at a later date: None 

The meeting ended at 8:12 pm. 

 

 

Next Meeting:  Monday, February 8, 2021 – 7:00 pm 



 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Book Policy Manual

Section 100 Programs

Title Discipline of Students With Disabilities

Code 113.1

Status Review

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Reviewed August 24, 2015

Purpose
 
The district shall develop and implement positive Behavior Support Plans and programs for students
with disabilities who require specific interventions to address behaviors that interfere with learning.
[1][2][3]
 
Students with disabilities who violate the Code of Student Conduct/Disciplinary Action Schedule, or
engage in inappropriate behavior, disruptive or prohibited activities and/or actions injurious to
themselves or others, which would typically result in corrective action or discipline of students
without disabilities, shall be disciplined in accordance with state and federal laws and regulations and
Board policy and, if applicable, their Individualized Education Program (IEP) and Positive Behavior
Support Plan.[1][4][5][6][7]
 
Definitions
 
Students with disabilities - school-aged children within the jurisdiction of the district who have
been evaluated and found to have one or more disabilities as defined by law, and who require,
because of such disabilities, special education and related services.[2]
 
Suspensions from school - disciplinary exclusions from school for a period of one (1) to ten (10)
consecutive school days.[7][8]
 
Expulsions from school - disciplinary exclusions from school by the Board for a period exceeding
ten (10) consecutive school days and may include permanent exclusion from school.[7][8]
 
Interim alternative educational settings - removal of a student with a disability from his/her the
student's current placement. Interim alternative educational settings may be used by school
personnel for up to forty-five (45) school days for certain infractions committed by students with
disabilities. The IEP team shall determine the interim alternative educational setting; however, this
does not constitute a change in placement for a student with a disability.[5][9]
 
Authority
 
The Board directs that the district shall comply with provisions and procedural safeguards of the
Individuals With Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) and federal and state regulations when disciplining

http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.143.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.6.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.6.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415


students with disabilities for violations of Board policy or district rules or regulations. No student with
a disability shall be subjected to a disciplinary change in placement if the student’s particular
misconduct is a manifestation of his/her the student's disability. However, under certain
circumstances a student with a disability may be placed in an interim alternative educational setting
by school personnel or the IEP team could, if appropriate, change the student’s educational
placement to one which is more restrictive than the placement where the misconduct occurred.[4][5]
[9]
 
Provision of Education During Disciplinary Exclusions
 
During any period of expulsion, or suspension from school for more than ten (10) cumulative days in
a year, or placement in an interim alternative educational setting for disciplinary reasons, a student
with a disability shall continue to receive a free and appropriate public education (FAPE), in
accordance with law.[5][8][10]
 
Guidelines
 
Suspension From School
 
A student with a disability may be suspended for ten (10) consecutive and fifteen (15)
nonconsecutive, cumulative days of school per school year, for the same reasons and duration as a
student without a disability. Such suspension shall not constitute a change in the student’s
educational placement.[4][5][8][9][11]
 
Changes in Educational Placement/Manifestation Determinations
 
For disciplinary exclusions which constitute a change in educational placement, the district shall first
determine whether the student’s behavior is a manifestation of his/her the student's disability.
Expulsion, or exclusion from school for more than fifteen (15) cumulative days in a year, or patterns
of suspensions for substantially identical behaviors constitute changes in educational placements
requiring a manifestation determination. For students with intellectual disability, any disciplinary
suspension or expulsion is a change in educational placement.[4][5]
 
A student with a disability whose behavior is not a manifestation of his/her the student's disability
may be disciplined in accordance with Board policy and district rules and regulations in the same
manner and to the same extent as students without disabilities.[4][5][6][7]
 
Parent/Guardian Appeals From Disciplinary Actions/Request for Hearing by District for Students Who
Are a Danger to Themselves or Others
 
A due process hearing may be requested by a parent/guardian of a student with a disability who
disagrees with a disciplinary placement or manifestation determination, or by the district if the
district believes that the current placement is substantially likely to result in injury to the student or
others. On parent/guardian appeal, or when the district requests a due process hearing, the hearing
officer may return the student to the placement from which s/he the student's was removed or
order his/her the student's removal to an appropriate interim alternative educational setting for up
to forty-five (45) school days if the hearing officer determines that maintaining the child’s student's
current placement is substantially likely to result in an injury to the student or others.[9][12]
 
Placement during appeals of disciplinary actions shall be in the interim alternative educational setting
pending the decision of the hearing officer or expiration of the time period set for the disciplinary
exclusion from the student’s regular placement unless the district and the parent/guardian agree
otherwise.[9][13]
 
Students Not Identified as Disabled/Pending Evaluation
 

http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.143.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.6.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1412
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.143.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.6.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.536
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.143.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.143.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.532
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.533


Students who have not been identified as disabled may be subject to the same disciplinary measures
applied to students without disabilities if the district did not have knowledge of the disability. If a
request for evaluation is made during the period the student is subject to disciplinary measures, the
evaluation shall be expedited. Absent a danger, student placement remains in place until the
evaluation is complete.[9][14]
 
Administrative Removal to Interim Alternative Educational Setting for Certain Infractions
 
School personnel may remove a student with a disability, including intellectual disability, to an
interim alternative educational setting for not more than forty-five (45) school days without regard to
whether the behavior is determined to be a manifestation of the student’s disability if the student:[5]
[9]

1. Carries a weapon to or possesses a weapon at school, on school property, or at school functions
under the jurisdiction of the district. For purposes of this provision, weapon is defined as a
weapon, device, instrument, material, or substance, animate or inanimate, that is used for, or
is readily capable of, causing death or serious bodily injury, except that such term does not
include a pocket knife with a blade of less than two and one-half (2 ½) inches in length.[5][9]
[15][16] 
 

2. Knowingly possesses or uses illegal drugs, as defined by law, or sells or solicits the sale of a
controlled substance, as defined by law, while at school, on school property, or at school
functions under the jurisdiction of the district.[5][9][17][18] 
 

3. Has inflicted serious bodily injury upon another person while at school, on school property, or
at school functions under the jurisdiction of the district. For purposes of this provision, serious
bodily injury means bodily injury which involves a substantial risk of death, extreme physical
pain, protracted and obvious disfigurement, or protracted loss or impairment of the function of
a bodily member, organ, or mental faculty.[5][9][19]

Referral to Law Enforcement and Reporting Requirements
 
For reporting purposes, the term incident shall mean an instance involving an act of violence; the
possession of a weapon; the possession, use, or sale of a controlled substance or drug paraphernalia
as defined in the Pennsylvania Controlled Substance, Drug, Device and Cosmetic Act; the possession,
use, or sale of alcohol or tobacco; or conduct that constitutes an offense listed under the Safe
Schools Act.[20][21][22]
 
The Superintendent or designee shall immediately report required incidents and may report
discretionary incidents committed on school property, at any school-sponsored activity, or on a
conveyance providing transportation to or from a school or school-sponsored activity by a student
with a disability, including a student for whom an evaluation is pending, to the local police
department that has jurisdiction over the school’s property, in accordance with state and federal laws
and regulations, the procedures set forth in the memorandum of understanding with local law
enforcement, and Board policies. The Superintendent or designee shall respond to such incidents in
accordance with the district’s Special Education Plan and, if applicable, the procedures, methods, and
techniques defined in the student’s Positive Behavior Support Plan.[1][2][3][6][9][15][17][21][23]
[24][25][26][27][28][29][30][31][32][33][34]
 
For a student with a disability who does not have a Positive Behavior Support Plan, subsequent to
notification to law enforcement, the district shall convene the student’s IEP team to consider whether
a Positive Behavior Support Plan should be developed to address the student’s behavior, in
accordance with law, regulations, and Board policies.[1][3][26][31]
 
When reporting an incident committed by a student with a disability to the appropriate authorities,
the district shall provide the information required by state and federal laws and regulations and shall
ensure that copies of the special education and disciplinary records of the student are transmitted for
consideration by these authorities. The district shall ensure compliance with the transmit copies of

http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.534
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/18/930
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/21/812
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/18/1365
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.2.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1972&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=64&chpt=0&sctn=2&subsctn=0
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.2.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=2&subsctn=1
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.21.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.22.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.23.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.25.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.104.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.535
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.23.html&d=reduce


the student’s special education and disciplinary records only to the extent that the transmission is
permitted by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act when transmitting copies of the
student's special education and disciplinary records.[9][21][24][25][26][29][34][35][36]
 
In accordance with state law, the Superintendent shall annually, by July 31, report to the Office for
Safe Schools on the required form all new incidents committed by students with disabilities, including
students for whom an evaluation is pending, which occurred on school property, at any school-
sponsored activity, or on a conveyance providing transportation to or from a school or school-
sponsored activity.[20][34]

Legal 1. 22 PA Code 14.133

2. Pol. 113

3. Pol. 113.2

4. 22 PA Code 14.143

5. 34 CFR 300.530

6. Pol. 218

7. Pol. 233

8. 22 PA Code 12.6

9. 20 U.S.C. 1415

10. 20 U.S.C. 1412

11. 34 CFR 300.536

12. 34 CFR 300.532

13. 34 CFR 300.533

14. 34 CFR 300.534

15. Pol. 218.1

16. 18 U.S.C. 930

17. Pol. 227

18. 21 U.S.C. 812

19. 18 U.S.C. 1365

20. 24 P.S. 1303-A

21. 22 PA Code 10.2

22. 35 P.S. 780-102

23. 24 P.S. 1302.1-A

24. 22 PA Code 10.21

25. 22 PA Code 10.22

26. 22 PA Code 10.23

27. 22 PA Code 10.25

28. 22 PA Code 14.104

29. 34 CFR 300.535

30. Pol. 103.1

31. Pol. 113.3

32. Pol. 218.2

33. Pol. 222

34 P l 805 1

http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.2.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.21.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.22.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.23.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.535
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.143.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.6.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1412
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.536
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.532
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.533
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.534
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/18/930
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/21/812
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/18/1365
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.2.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1972&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=64&chpt=0&sctn=2&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=2&subsctn=1
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.21.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.22.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.23.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.25.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.104.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.535


34. Pol. 805.1

35. Pol. 113.4

36. Pol. 216

20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq

24 P.S. 510

34 CFR Part 300

Pol. 113.5

Pol. 146.1

http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/chapter-33
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=10&subsctn=0
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-300


 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Book Policy Manual

Section 100 Programs

Title Behavior Intervention

Code 113.2

Status Review

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Reviewed August 24, 2015

Purpose
 
Students with disabilities shall be educated in the least restrictive environment (LRE) in accordance
with their Individualized Education Program (IEP), and shall only be placed in settings other than the
regular education class when the nature or severity of the student’s disability is such that education
in the regular education class with the use of appropriate supplementary aids and services cannot be
achieved satisfactorily and cannot meet the needs of the student. The IEP team for a student with a
disability shall develop a Positive Behavior Support Plan if the student requires specific intervention
to address behavior that interferes with learning. The identification, evaluation, and plan or program
shall be conducted and implemented in accordance with state and federal laws and regulations.[1][2]
[3][4][5]
 
Authority
 
The Board directs that the district’s behavior support programs shall be based on positive rather than
negative behavior techniques to ensure that students shall be free from demeaning treatment and
unreasonable use of restraints or other aversive techniques. The use of restraints shall be considered
a measure of last resort and shall only be used after other less restrictive measures, including de-
escalation techniques. Behavior support programs and plans shall be based on a functional
behavioral assessment and shall include a variety of research-based techniques to develop and
maintain skills that will enhance students’ opportunity for learning and self-fulfillment.[1][3][5][6][7]
[8][9][10][11]
 
Definitions
 
The following terms shall have these meanings, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise.[1]
 
Aversive techniques - deliberate activities designed to establish a negative association with a
specific behavior.
 
Behavior support - development, change and maintenance of selected behaviors through the
systematic application of behavior change techniques.
 
Positive Behavior Support Plan or Behavior Intervention Plan - plan for students with
disabilities who require specific intervention to address behavior that interferes with learning. A
Positive Behavior Support Plan shall be developed by the IEP team, be based on a functional

http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.145.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1414
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.114
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.324
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1414
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.324
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.34
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce


behavioral assessment, and become part of the individual student’s IEP. These plans must include
methods that use positive reinforcements, other positive techniques and related services required to
assist a student with a disability to benefit from special education.
 
Positive techniques - methods that utilize positive reinforcement to shape a student's behavior,
ranging from the use of positive verbal statements as a reward for good behaviors to specific
tangible rewards.
 
Restraints - application of physical force, with or without the use of any device, designed to restrain
free movement of a student’s body, excluding the following:

1. Briefly holding a student, without force, to calm or comfort the student. 
 

2. Guiding a student to an appropriate activity. 
 

3. Holding a student’s hand to escort the student safely from one area to another. 
 

4. Hand-over-hand assistance with feeding or task completion. 
 

5. Techniques prescribed by a qualified medical professional for reasons of safety or for
therapeutic or medical treatment, as agreed to by the student’s parents/guardians and
specified in the IEP. 
 

6. Mechanical restraints governed by this policy, such as devices used for physical or occupational
therapy, seatbelts in wheelchairs or on toilets used for balance and safety, safety harnesses in
buses, and functional positioning devices.

Seclusion - confinement of a student in a room, with or without staff supervision in the same room
at all times, in order to provide a safe environment to allow the student to regain self-control.
 
Students with disabilities - school-aged children within the jurisdiction of the district who have
been evaluated and found to have one or more disabilities as defined by law, and who require,
because of such disabilities, special education and related services.[9]
 
Delegation of Responsibility
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that this Board policy is implemented in accordance
with federal and state laws and regulations.
 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop administrative regulations to implement this policy.
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide regular training and retraining of staff in the use of
specific procedures, methods and techniques, including de-escalation techniques, emergency
responses, restraints and seclusions, that will be used to implement positive behavior supports or
interventions in accordance with students’ IEPs, Positive Behavior Support Plans and Board policy.[1]
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain and report data on the use of restraints, as required.
Such report shall be readily available for review during the state’s cyclical compliance monitoring.
Procedures shall be established requiring reports to be made to the district by entities educating
students with disabilities who attend programs or classes outside the district, including private
schools, agencies, intermediate units and career and technical schools.[1]
 
Guidelines
 
Development of a separate Positive Behavior Support Plan is not required when appropriate positive
behavioral interventions, strategies and supports can be incorporated into a student’s IEP.[1][5]
 
When an intervention is necessary to address problem behavior, the positive techniques and types of
intervention chosen for a student shall be the least intrusive necessary.
 

http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.324


Physical Restraints
 
Restraints to control acute or episodic aggressive behavior may be used only when the student is
acting in a manner that presents a clear and present danger to the student, other students or
employees, and only when less restrictive measures and techniques have proven to be or are less
effective.[1]
 
The Director of Special Education or designee shall notify the parent/guardian as soon as practicable
of the use of restraints to control the aggressive behavior of the student and shall convene a meeting
of the IEP team within ten (10) school days of the use of restraints, unless the parent/guardian, after
written notice, agrees in writing to waive the meeting. At this meeting, the IEP team shall consider
whether the student needs a functional behavioral assessment, re-evaluation, a new or revised
Positive Behavior Support Plan, or a change of placement to address the inappropriate behavior.[1]
 
The use of restraints shall not be included in the IEP for the convenience of staff, as a substitute for
an educational program, or employed as punishment. Restraints may be included in an IEP with
parental consent only if:[1]

1. The restraint is used with specific component elements of a Positive Behavior Support Plan. 
 

2. The restraint is used in conjunction with teaching socially appropriate alternative skills or
behaviors. 
 

3. Staff are authorized to use the restraint and have received appropriate training. 
 

4. Positive Behavior Support Plan includes efforts to eliminate the use of restraints.

Mechanical Restraints
 
Mechanical restraints, which are used to control involuntary movement or lack of muscular control of
a student when due to organic causes or conditions, may be employed only when specified by an IEP
and as determined by a medical professional qualified to make the determination, and as agreed to
by the student’s parents/guardians.[1]
 
Mechanical restraints shall prevent a student from injuring the student or others, or promote
normative body positioning and physical functioning.
 
Seclusion
 
The district permits involuntary seclusion of a student for a limited period of time in accordance with
the student’s IEP or in an emergency to prevent immediate or imminent injury to the student or
others, but the seclusion must be the least restrictive alternative. District staff shall provide
continuous supervision of students in seclusion, which need not always involve presence of staff
within the same room.
 
The district prohibits the seclusion of students in locked rooms, locked boxes and other structures or
spaces from which the student cannot readily exit.[1]
 
Aversive Techniques
 
The following aversive techniques of handling behavior are considered inappropriate and shall not be
used in educational programs:[1]

1. Corporal punishment. 
 

2. Punishment for a manifestation of a student's disability. 
 

3. Locked rooms, locked boxes, other locked structures or spaces from which the student cannot
readily exit. 
 

http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce


4. Noxious substances. 
 

5. Deprivation of basic human rights, such as withholding meals, water or fresh air. 
 

6. Suspensions constituting a pattern as defined in state regulations.[12] 
 

7. Treatment of a demeaning nature. 
 

8. Electric shock. 
 

9. Methods implemented by untrained personnel. 
 

10. Prone restraints, which are restraints by which a student is held face down on the floor.

Referral to Law Enforcement
 
The Superintendent or designee shall immediately report required incidents and may report
discretionary incidents committed on school property, at any school-sponsored activity or on a
conveyance providing transportation to or from a school or school-sponsored activity by a student
with a disability, including a student for whom an evaluation is pending, to the local police
department that has jurisdiction over the school’s property, in accordance with state and federal laws
and regulations, the procedures set forth in the memorandum of understanding with local law
enforcement and Board policies. The Superintendent or designee shall respond to such incidents in
accordance with the district’s Special Education Plan and, if applicable, the procedures, methods and
techniques defined in the student’s Positive Behavior Support Plan.[1][6][9][10][13][14][15][16]
[17][18][19][20][21][22][23][24][25][26][27]
 
For a student with a disability who has a Positive Behavior Support Plan at the time of referral,
subsequent to notification to law enforcement, the district shall convene the student’s IEP team and
an updated functional behavioral assessment and Positive Behavior Support Plan shall be required.
[1][11][17]
 
If, as a result of such referral, the student is detained or otherwise placed in a residential setting
located outside the district, the Director of Special Education or designee shall ensure that the
responsible school district or intermediate unit is informed of the need to update the student’s
functional behavioral assessment and Positive Behavior Support Plan.[1]
 
For a student with a disability who does not have a Positive Behavior Support Plan, subsequent to
notification to law enforcement, the district shall convene the student’s IEP team to consider whether
a Positive Behavior Support Plan should be developed to address the student’s behavior, in
accordance with law, regulations and Board policy.[1][17]
 
Relations With Law Enforcement
 
The district shall provide a copy of its administrative regulations and procedures for behavior
support, developed in accordance with the Special Education Plan, to each local police department
that has jurisdiction over school property. Updated copies shall be provided each time the
administrative regulations and procedures for behavior support are revised by the district.[9][17]
[19][27]
 
The district shall invite representatives of each local police department that has jurisdiction over
school property to participate in district training on the use of positive behavior supports, de-
escalation techniques and appropriate responses to student behavior that may require intervention,
as included in the district’s Special Education Plan and positive behavior support program.[1][9][17]
[19][27]
 
Purpose
 

http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.143.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=2&subsctn=1
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.2.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.21.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.22.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.23.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.25.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.104.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.535
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.23.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.23.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.23.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.104.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.23.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.104.html&d=reduce


To ensure compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14 of the regulations of the Pennsylvania
State Board of Education governing behavior interventions and the use of restraints with students
identified with disabilities.[1]
 
General Policy
 
The following principles shall govern the use of behavior supports and interventions for children with
disabilities:[1][2][3][4][5][6][7][8][9]

1. Positive, rather than negative, measures must form the basis of behavior support programs to
ensure that all students shall be free from demeaning treatment, the use of adverse
techniques, and the unreasonable use of restraints. 
 

2. Behavior support programs and plans must be based on a functional assessment of behavior
and use positive behavior techniques. 
 

3. Behavior support programs must include research-based practices and techniques to develop
and maintain skills that will enhance an individual student’s opportunity for learning and self-
fulfillment. 
 

4. When an intervention is needed to address problem behavior, the types of intervention chosen
for a particular student shall be the least intrusive necessary. 
 

5. The use of restraints is considered a measure of last resort, only to be used after other less
restrictive measures, including de-escalation techniques. 
 

6. Nothing in this policy shall be construed to require the development of a separate behavior
support or intervention plan when appropriate positive behavioral interventions, strategies, and
supports, consistent with the requirements of this policy, can be incorporated into the body of
the IEP.

Definitions
 
As used in this policy, the following words and terms shall have the following meanings, unless the
context clearly indicates otherwise.[1]
 
Aversive techniques - deliberate activities designed to establish a negative association with a
specific behavior.
 
Behavior support - the development, change, and maintenance of selected behaviors through the
systematic application of behavior change techniques.
 
Positive Behavior Support Plans - a plan for students with disabilities who require specific
intervention to address behavior that interferes with learning. A positive Behavior Support Plan shall
be developed by the IEP team, be based on a functional behavioral assessment, and become part of
the individual student’s IEP. These plans must include methods that use positive reinforcement and
other positive techniques to shape the behavior of the child with disabilities, ranging from the use of
positive verbal statements as a reward for good behavior to specific tangible rewards.
 
Restraints - the application of physical force, with or without the use of any device, for the purpose
of restraining the free movement of a student’s body, excluding the following:

1. Briefly holding a student, without force, to calm or comfort him/her. 
 

2. Guiding a student to an appropriate activity. 
 

3. Holding a student’s hand to escort him/her safely from one area to another. 
 

http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1414
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.324
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.34
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce


4. Hand-over-hand assistance with feeding or task completion. 
 

5. Techniques prescribed by a qualified medical professional for reasons of safety or for
therapeutic or medical treatment, as agreed to by the student’s parents/guardians and
specified in the IEP. 
 

6. Mechanical restraints governed by this policy, such as devices used for physical or occupational
therapy, seatbelts in wheelchairs or on toilets used for balance and safety, safety harnesses in
buses, and functional positioning devices.

Guidelines
 
Use of Physical Restraints Other Than Mechanical Restraints
 
Restraints to control acute or episodic aggressive or self-injurious behavior may be used only when
the student is acting in a manner as to be a clear and present danger to him/herself, to other
students, or to employees, and only when less restrictive measures and techniques have proven to
be or are less effective. The Director of Special Education or his/her designee shall notify the
parent/guardian as soon as practicable of the use of restraints to control the aggressive behavior of
his/her child and shall convene a meeting of the IEP team within ten (10) school days of the
inappropriate behavior causing the use of restraints, unless the parent/guardian, after written notice,
agrees in writing to waive the meeting. At this meeting, the IEP team shall consider whether the
student needs a functional behavioral assessment, re-evaluation, a new or revised positive Behavior
Support Plan, or a change of placement to address the inappropriate behavior.[1]
 
The use of restraints may only be included in a student’s IEP under the following conditions:[1]

1. The restraint is used in conjunction with specific components of positive behavior support. 
 

2. The restraint is used in conjunction with the teaching of socially acceptable alternative skills to
replace problem behavior. 
 

3. Staff are authorized, and have received all training required, to use the specific procedure. 
 

4. The positive Behavior Support Plan of the student includes a plan for eliminating the use of
restraint through the application of positive behavior support. 
 

5. The use of restraints are not included in the IEP for the convenience of staff, as a substitute for
an educational program, or employed as punishment.

Use of Mechanical Restraints
 
Except in an emergency, or otherwise provided herein, mechanical restraints, which are used to
control involuntary movement or lack of muscular control of students when due to organic causes or
conditions, may be employed only when specified by an IEP and as determined by a medical
professional qualified to make the determination, and as agreed to by the student’s
parents/guardians. Mechanical restraints shall prevent a student from injuring him/herself or others
or promote normative body positioning and physical functioning.[1]
 
Proscription of Certain Aversive Techniques
 
The following aversive techniques for addressing behavior are inappropriate and may not be used in
educational programs:

1. Corporal punishment. 
 

2. Punishment for a manifestation of a child's disability. 
 

http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce


3. Locked rooms, locked boxes, or other locked structures or spaces from which the child cannot
readily exit. 
 

4. Noxious substances. 
 

5. Deprivation of basic human rights, such as withholding meals, water, or fresh air. 
 

6. Suspensions constituting a pattern as defined in Section 14.143(a) of the regulations of the
State Board of Education, and any other successor regulation.[10] 
 

7. Treatment of a reasonably demeaning nature. 
 

8. Electric shock. 
 

9. The use of prone restraints, which are those by which a student is held face down on the floor.

Reporting and Monitoring
 
The Superintendent or his/her designee shall maintain and report data on the use of restraints in a
manner prescribed by the Secretary of Education of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. Such report
shall be readily available for review during cyclical compliance monitoring conducted by the
Pennsylvania Department of Education.[1]
 
Referral to Law Enforcement
 
Subsequent to a referral to law enforcement, an updated functional behavioral assessment and
positive Behavior Support Plan shall be required for students with disabilities who have positive
Behavior Support Plans at the time of such referral. If, as a result of such referral, the student is
detained or otherwise placed in a residential setting located outside the district, the Director of
Special Education or his/her designee shall ensure that the responsible school district or intermediate
unit is informed of the need to update the functional behavioral assessment and the positive
Behavior Support Plan of the student.[1][9][11]
 
Regular Program of Training
 
The Superintendent or his/her designee shall provide for the regular training and retraining, as
needed, of personnel in the use of specific procedures, methods, and techniques, including
restraints, that those personnel will be expected to employ in the implementation of positive
behavior supports or interventions in accordance with the IEP of the child and this policy.[1]

http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.143.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.23.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce


Legal 1. 22 PA Code 14.133

2. 20 U.S.C. 1414

3. 20 U.S.C. 1415

4. 34 CFR 300.324

5. 34 CFR 300.34

6. 34 CFR 300.530

7. Pol. 113

8. Pol. 113.1

9. Pol. 113.3

10. 22 PA Code 14.143

11. 22 PA Code 10.23

24 P.S. 1303-A

24 P.S. 1302.1-A

22 PA Code 10.2

22 PA Code 10.21

22 PA Code 10.22

22 PA Code 10.25

22 PA Code 14.104

22 PA Code 14.145

20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq

34 CFR Part 300

Pennsylvania Training and Technical Assistance Network (PaTTAN), Questions and Answers
on the Restraint Reporting Requirements and System, June 2009

Pol. 000

Pol. 103.1

Pol. 218

Pol. 218.1

Pol. 218.2

Pol. 222

Pol. 227

Pol. 805.1

http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1414
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.324
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.34
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.143.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.23.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=2&subsctn=1
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.2.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.21.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.22.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.25.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.104.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.145.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/chapter-33
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-300
http://www.pattan.net/


 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Book Policy Manual

Section 100 Programs

Title Confidentiality of Special Education Student Information

Code 113.4

Status Review

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Reviewed August 24, 2015

Authority
 
The Board recognizes the need to protect the confidentiality of personally identifiable information in
the education records of students with disabilities.[1]
 
The district shall maintain a system of safeguards to protect the confidentiality of students’
educational records and personally identifiable information when collecting, retaining, disclosing, and
destroying student special education records, in accordance with Board policy, state requirements,
and federal and state law and regulations.[2]
 
The rights provided by this policy apply to parents/guardians of students who receive special
education programming and services from the district or an outside program provided through the
district.[3][4]
 
Definitions
 
Destruction shall mean the physical destruction or removal of personal identifiers from information
so that the information is no longer personally identifiable.[5]
 
Disclosure shall mean to permit access to or the release, transfer, or other communication of
personally identifiable information contained in education records by any means, including oral,
written, or electronic means, to any party except the party identified as the party that provided or
created the record.[6]
 
Education Records, for purposes of this policy, shall include the records and information covered
under the definition of education records in the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and its implementing regulations.[6][7][8]
 
Personally identifiable information includes, but is not limited to:[6][9]

1. The name of a student, the student's parents/guardians or other family members. 
 

2. The address of the student or student’s family. 
 

http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-300/subpart-F
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.520
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.625
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.611
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.3
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.3
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1232g
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.3
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.32


3. A personal identifier, such as the student's social security number, student number, or biometric
record. 
 

4. Other indirect identifiers, such as the student’s date of birth, place of birth, and mother’s
maiden name. 
 

5. Other information that, alone or in combination, is linked or linkable to a specific student that
would allow a reasonable person in the school community, who does not have personal
knowledge of the relevant circumstances, to identify the student with reasonable certainty. 
 

6. Information requested by a person who the district reasonably believes knows the identity of
the student to whom the education record relates.

Guidelines
 
Parental Access Rights
 
The district shall permit parents/guardians to inspect and review any education records relating to
their child(ren) that are collected, retained, or used by the district in connection with providing
special education services to the student.[10][11]
 
The district shall comply with a parental request to inspect and review education records without
unnecessary delay and before any meeting regarding an Individualized Education Program (IEP); any
impartial due process hearing relating to the identification, evaluation, educational placement, or the
provision of a free and appropriate public education (FAPE) to a student; a hearing related to the
discipline of the student; or a resolution meeting.
 
The district shall presume a parent/guardian has authority to inspect and review records relating to
his/her their child unless it has been provided documentation that the requesting parent/guardian
does not have this authority under applicable state law.[11][12]
 
The district shall comply with a parental request for review within forty-five (45) days following
receipt of the request.[10][11]
 
A parent’s/guardian’s right to inspect and review education records includes the right to:

1. A response from the district to reasonable requests for explanations and interpretations of the
records; 
 

2. Request that the district provide copies of the records if failure to provide copies would
effectively prevent the parent/guardian from exercising the right to inspect and review the
records; and 
 

3. Have a representative inspect and review the records.

If an education record includes information on more than one (1) student, the parents/guardians
shall have access only to the information relating to their child or shall be provided a summary of the
information in the record related to their child.[13][14]
 
The district shall provide parents/guardians, upon request, a list of the types and locations of
education records collected, maintained, or used by the district.[15]
 
Fees
 
The district may charge a fee for copies of records that are made for parents/guardians so long as
the fee does not effectively prevent parents/guardians from exercising their right to inspect and
review those records.[16][17]
 

http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.10
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.613
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.613
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.4
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.10
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.613
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.12
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.615
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.616
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.11
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.617


The district shall not charge a fee to search for or to retrieve information in response to a parental
request. Charging of fees shall be in accordance with Board policy.
 
Record of Access
 
The district shall keep a record of parties obtaining access to education records collected,
maintained, or used in providing special education and related services to students with
disabilities, except access by parents/guardians and authorized district employees.[18]
 
The district’s record of access shall include the name of the party, the date access was given, and the
purpose for which the party is authorized to use the records.
 
Amendment of Records Upon Parental Request
 
If a parent/guardian believes that information in the student’s education records is inaccurate,
misleading or violates the privacy or other rights of the student, the parent/guardian may request
that the district amend the information.[19][20]
 
The district shall decide whether to amend the information within a reasonable period of time from
receipt of the request.
 
If the district declines to amend the information in accordance with a parental request, the district
shall inform the parent/guardian of the refusal and advise the parent/guardian of the right to a
hearing.
 
Records Hearing
 
The district shall, on request, provide parents/guardians with an opportunity for a hearing to
challenge information in the student’s education records to ensure that the information is not
inaccurate, misleading, or otherwise in violation of the student’s privacy or other rights. The district
recognizes that parents/guardians who believe that there is a due process violation relating to an
alleged violation of confidentiality may also request a special education due process hearing.[21][22]
[34]
 
Hearing Procedures
 
A hearing to challenge information in education records must meet the following requirements:[23]
[24]

1. The Superintendent or his/her designee shall schedule a hearing within thirty (30)
days after receiving the request for a hearing. 
 

2. The district shall hold the hearing within a reasonable time after receiving the request for
a hearing. 
 

3. The district shall give the parent/guardian five (5) days'  reasonable advanced written notice
of the date, time, and place of the hearing. 
 

4. The hearing may be conducted by any individual, including a district official, who does not have
a direct interest in the outcome of the hearing. 
 

5. The district shall give the parent/guardian a full and fair opportunity to present relevant
evidence. The parent/guardian may, at his/her their own expense, be assisted or represented
by one (1) or more individuals of his/her their choice, including an attorney. 
 

6. The district shall inform parents/guardians of its decision in writing within thirty (30) days after
the hearing. 

http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.614
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.20
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.618
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.21
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.619
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-300/subpart-E
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.22
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.621


 
7. The decision must be based solely on the evidence presented at the hearing, and must include

a summary of the evidence and the reasons for the decision.

Result of Hearing
 
If, as a result of the hearing, the district decides that the information is inaccurate, misleading, or
otherwise in violation of the student’s privacy or other rights, the district shall amend the information
accordingly and inform the parent/guardian in writing.[21][25]
 
If, as a result of the hearing, the district decides that the information is not inaccurate, misleading,
or otherwise in violation of the student’s privacy or other rights, the district shall inform the
parent/guardian of the parent’s/guardian’s right to place in the student’s records a statement
commenting on the information and/or providing any reasons for disagreeing with the district’s
decision.
 
Any explanation placed in the student’s records shall be:

1. Maintained by the district as part of the student’s records as long as the record or contested
portion is maintained by the district; and 
 

2. Included with the record or contested portion if the record or contested portion are disclosed to
any party.

Storage, Retention, and Destruction of Information
 
The district shall store all education records and personally identifiable information of students
receiving special education services in such a way as to protect the confidentiality and integrity of
the records and information, prevent unauthorized access to and disclosure of records and
information, and ensure compliance with other legal and regulatory requirements regarding records
retention.[26]
 
The district shall maintain, for public inspection, a current listing of the names and positions of those
district employees who have access to personally identifiable information.[26]
 
In order to comply with state compliance monitoring requirements, the district shall maintain
education records for students receiving special education services for at least six (6) years.[8]
 
The district shall inform parents/guardians when personally identifiable information collected,
maintained, or used is no longer needed to provide educational services to the student. After notice,
such information shall be destroyed upon parental request.[27]
 
No education record shall be destroyed if there is an outstanding request to inspect or review the
record or if a litigation hold exists.[10]
 
The district may maintain, among others, a permanent record of the student’s name, address, and
phone number, his/her grades, attendance record, classes attended, grade level completed, and year
completed.[27]
 
The district shall ensure the destruction of education records in a manner that protects the
confidentiality and privacy rights of the student and his/her the student's family.[26]
 
Disclosure to Third Parties
 
The district shall obtain parental consent before disclosing personally identifiable information to
parties other than school district officials with a legitimate educational interest or other educational
institutions that provide special education services to the student for the purposes of meeting a
requirement of law or regulation unless the information is contained in education records and the

http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.21
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.620
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.623
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.623
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.624
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.10
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.624
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.623


disclosure is permitted without parental consent under law and regulations.[8][28][29][30][31][32]
[33]
 
Parental consent must be obtained before personally identifiable information is released to officials of
participating agencies providing or paying for transition services.[31]
 
If a student is enrolled, or is going to enroll in a private school that is not located in the district of the
parent’s/guardian’s residence, parental consent must be obtained before any personally identifiable
information about the student is released between officials in the district where the private school is
located and officials in the district of the parent’s/guardian’s residence.[31]
 
Disclosure to Law Enforcement
 
When reporting an incident committed by a student with a disability to the appropriate
authorities, in accordance with applicable law, regulations and Board policy, the district
shall provide the information required by state and federal laws and regulations and shall
ensure that copies of the special education and disciplinary records of the student are
transmitted for consideration by these authorities. The district shall ensure compliance
with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act when transmitting copies of the
student’s special education and disciplinary records.[2][8][33][35][36][37][38][39][40]
[41][42]
 
 
Delegation of Responsibility
 
In order to maintain the confidentiality of the educational records and personally identifiable
information of students with disabilities, the Board designates the Superintendent or designee to
coordinate the district’s efforts to comply with this policy and applicable laws and regulations.[26]
 
All district employees collecting or using personally identifiable information shall receive training or
instruction regarding Board policy, administrative regulations, and state and federal law and
regulations regarding confidentiality of education records and personally identifiable information.[26]

http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.30
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.31
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.154
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.622
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.622
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.622
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1232g
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.2.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.21.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.22.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.23.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.535
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-99
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.623
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.623


Legal 1. Pol. 113

2. 34 CFR 300.611-300.627

3. 34 CFR 300.520

4. 34 CFR 300.625

5. 34 CFR 300.611

6. 34 CFR 99.3

7. 20 U.S.C. 1232g

8. Pol. 216

9. 34 CFR 300.32

10. 34 CFR 99.10

11. 34 CFR 300.613

12. 34 CFR 99.4

13. 34 CFR 99.12

14. 34 CFR 300.615

15. 34 CFR 300.616

16. 34 CFR 99.11

17. 34 CFR 300.617

18. 34 CFR 300.614

19. 34 CFR 99.20

20. 34 CFR 300.618

21. 34 CFR 99.21

22. 34 CFR 300.619

23. 34 CFR 99.22

24. 34 CFR 300.621

25. 34 CFR 300.620

26. 34 CFR 300.623

27. 34 CFR 300.624

28. 34 CFR 99.30

29. 34 CFR 99.31

30. 34 CFR 300.154

31. 34 CFR 300.622

32. Pol. 113.1

33. Pol. 113.2

34. 34 CFR 300.510-300.516

20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq

34 CFR 300.101-300.176

34 CFR Part 99

34 CFR Part 300

Bureau of Special Education Letter to School Entities on Retention Of Records, Dated
November 9, 2009

http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-300/subpart-F
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.520
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.625
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.611
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.3
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1232g
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.32
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.10
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.613
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.4
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.12
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.615
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.616
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.11
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.617
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.614
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.20
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.618
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.21
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.619
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.22
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.621
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.620
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.623
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.624
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.30
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.31
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.154
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.622
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-300/subpart-E
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/chapter-33
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-300/subpart-B
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-99
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-300


 
WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Property & Finance Committee 
January 25, 2021 – ACTION ITEMS 

 
 

Approval to Acknowledge Receipt of the 2019-20 Local Audit Report 
 
Approval is requested to acknowledge receipt of the 2019-20 Local Audit Report. 
 
I so move. 
 
Approval of Contract Award for Replacement of Roof Top HVAC Units at East 
Goshen Elementary School Multi-Purpose Room 
 
Approval is requested for a Contract with the lowest responsible bidder, JBM Mechanical, 
in the amount of $189,000 for replacement of the Roof Top HVAC Units at East Goshen 
Elementary School’s Multi-Purpose Room. 
 
I so move. 
 
Approval of Tax Collector Resolution 
 
Approval is requested for the Tax Collector Resolution for compensation for the period of 
January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2025. 
 
I so move. 
 
Approval of Revised Board Policy 827, Conflict of Interest, First Reading 
 
Approval is requested for revised Board Policy 827, Conflict of Interest, First Reading. 
 
I so move. 
 
Approval of 2021-22 Technology Projects in the Capital Reserve Fund 
 
Approval is requested for the 2021-22 technology projects in the Capital Reserve Fund 
not to exceed a total budget of $3,434,867. 
 
I so move. 
 



Committee Meeting Minutes 
WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

January 19, 2021 – Property & Finance Committee 
 
Attending Committee Members:  Mr. Gary Bevilacqua-Chair, Mr. Brian Gallen, Dr. Karen 
Herrmann, Mr. Randell Spackman 
Other Board Members: Mr. Daryl Durnell, Mr. Chris McCune, Dr. Kate Shaw, Mrs. Sue 
Tiernan  
Administration:  Mr. John Scully, Dr. James Scanlon, Mr. Kevin Campbell, Dr. Bob 
Sokolowski, Mr. Michael Wagman, Mr. Mark Groves, Mr. Justin Matys 
Also Present:  Members of the public 
 
Action or outcomes from the meeting:  (Unless noted, all votes were 4-0.) 
The committee approved the December 21, 2020 Property & Finance 
Committee Minutes. 

Mr. 
Bevilacqua 

Mr. Wagman presented to the committee the 2021-22 technology capital 
budget which includes the replacement of aging switchgear, wireless access 
points, staff computers, the purchase of laptop computers for grades six 
and nine, and the purchase of iPad devices for grades K and 3 for a total 
budget of $3,434,867. 
Included in the budget is a request of $30,000 for additional security 
cameras and the maintenance of existing cameras. While not part of the 
capital budget, the District is continuing the staff cybersecurity education 
awareness program. The classroom projector replacement project is 
substantially complete.  The capital budget projections include funds for 
phased replacements so that we should not have to replace over 800 
projectors in a compressed timeframe.   
The District will be applying for E-Rate subsidies on eligible equipment, 
providing us with a 40 percent reimbursement of our costs. Mr. Wagman 
will be requesting a separate motion next month for approval to proceed 
with the recommended vendors associated with providing the E-Rate eligible 
equipment. 
The committee approved the 2021-22 capital budget proposal. 

Mr. 
Wagman 

Mr. Groves advised the committee that the Facilities and Operations 
Department held a bid opening for replacement of the Roof Top HVAC Units 
at East Goshen Elementary School’s Multi-Purpose Room and is seeking 
approval of the lowest responsible bidder, JBM Mechanical, to perform the 
work at a cost of $189,000. An approval for this work came before the 
board in March 2020.  Because of the pandemic, the initial contract was 
formally cancelled.  This is the second time this work has been bid.  
The committee recommended approval of a contract with JBM Mechanical. 

Mr. 
Groves 

Mr. Scully reviewed the Budget Forecast Model and the changes made since 
December 2020. Changes to 2020-21 expense projections include a 
$400,000 reduction in Salary expense related to aides and custodial staff.   
2020-21 revenue projections were adjusted for increases of $207,142 in 
Real Estate income, $300,000 in Earned Income Tax, $300,000 in Transfer 
Tax, and $140,551 in IDEA grant revenue. The total net change to 2020-21 
projections is $1,347,693 which increased the fund balance designated for 
future millage increases and will be utilized to reduce the 2021-22 budget 
gap.  The 2021-22 expense forecast decreased by $146,924 related to a 
transfer to other funds to reduce the budget gap. The changes to the 2021-

Mr. Scully 



22 projections and the utilization of the 2020-21 savings will reduce the 
2021-22 budget gap by $1,494,617. Mr. Scully reviewed the Financial 
Summary – All funds on page 33 of the model.  With the incorporation of 
the above changes the summary of all funds analysis showed a net gap in 
2021-22 of $6,066,000 assuming a tax increase up to the ACT 1 limit. The 
Administration will continue to review projections for potential savings to 
reduce the millage impact for the 2021-22 District’s final budget.  This is an 
informational item and no Board action is required. 
Mr. Scully advised the committee that every four years, school districts 
must establish the method and rate of compensation to be paid to the local 
tax collectors for the upcoming term.  The deadline for setting the rate of 
compensation for the term of January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2025 
is February 15, 2021.  Mr. Scully advised the committee that all collectors 
with the exception of Thornbury, Delaware County have deputized the 
school district to collect the taxes. In 2013, minor revisions to the resolution 
were made to reflect our arrangement with Berkheimer Associates as well 
as a change in the fees for tax certifications.  At this time, the 
Administration is recommending the method and rate of compensation 
remain unchanged from the current method and rate.    
The committee recommended approval of the Tax Collector Resolution. 

Mr. Scully 

Mr. Scully reviewed changes to Board Policy 827, Conflict of Interest. In 
December 2020, the State completed its procurement review of the West 
Chester Area School District’s Food Service program for purchases made 
during the 2018-19 fiscal year.  This was a review of the goods and services 
purchased utilizing funds from the District’s Cafeteria accounts. As a result 
of the review, the State recommended a revision to the District’s Conflict of 
Interest Board Policy 827 to comply with federal regulations related to gifts 
of nominal value.  The Solicitor reviewed the Policy’s wording changes and 
is in agreement with the revisions. 
The committee recommended approval of revised Board Policy 827, First 
Reading. 

Mr. Scully 

Items to be placed on board agenda January 25, 2021: 
• Approval of 2021-22 Technology Projects in the Capital Reserve Fund 
• Approval of Contract Award for Replacement of Roof Top HVAC Units at East Goshen 

Elementary School Multi-Purpose Room 
• Approval of Tax Collector Resolution 
• Approval of Revised Board Policy 827, Conflict of Interest, First Reading 
 
MEMO items for board agenda January 25, 2021: 
• Approval to Acknowledge Receipt of the 2019-20 Local Audit Report 
 
 
Items to discuss at a later date: 
  
  

Next Meeting Date:   Tuesday, February 16, 2021 



RESOLUTION NO.         
 

BACKGROUND 
 

 The Board of School Directors of the West Chester Area School District are 

offering the School District’s elected tax collectors two compensation options for 

collecting the School District’s real estate taxes for the term commencing 2022.  With 

one option the tax collector is responsible for all administrative functions involved in the 

tax collection.  In the other option, the majority of the tax collector functions are 

delegated to the School District and a bank selected by the School District and 

deputized by the tax collector to collect the real estate taxes.  Accordingly, this 

Resolution is being adopted, per the Local Tax Collection Law, and specifically, 72 P.S. 

§5511.36a. 

RESOLUTION 

 AND NOW, this 25th day of January, 2021, the Board of School Directors of the 

West Chester Area School District resolves as follows: 

  1.  The compensation for the West Chester Area School District 

(“WCASD” or “District”) tax collectors for the term commencing 2022 shall be computed 

on a per tax bill basis according to one of the following options to be selected by each 

tax collector: 
 
  Option 1: The District will pay the tax collector Fifty-Five Cents ($.55) 

per bill if the tax collector prepares and mails the tax bills, 
and collects and deposits the taxes per the requirements of 
this Resolution, the School District’s rules and regulation, 
and the laws of this Commonwealth.  In addition, expenses 
for postage and printing of tax notices shall be paid by the 
School District as provided by the School Laws of this 
Commonwealth. 

 
  Option 2: The District will pay the tax collector One Dollar ($1.00) per 

annum, plus reasonable documented expenses, not to 
exceed Twenty Cents ($.20) per tax bill, if the tax collector 
contracts with the School District to prepare and mail the tax 
bills and deputizes the bank selected by the School District 
to collect the taxes, per the requirements of this Resolution, 
the School District’s rules and regulations, and the laws of 
this Commonwealth.  In addition, the School District shall 
agree to indemnify and hold harmless tax collector from any 



-2- 

and all claims which may be brought against tax collector 
because of any action or inaction of the School District 
pursuant to said contract. 

 

  2.  If Option 1 is selected by a tax collector, he or she shall comply with 

the following requirements: 

   (a)  Checks for tax payments shall be made payable to West 

Chester Area School District.  Tax collectors shall deposit all tax payments into the 

designated West Chester Area School District (WCASD) bank account on the day the 

tax payments are received. 

   (b)  Tax collectors shall accept the envelope postmark for mailed 

payments to determine compliance with the tax collection deadlines, and shall not make 

exceptions to tax collection deadline rule when determining payment periods and 

crediting amounts due from taxpayers. 

   (c)  Tax collectors shall accept installment payments according 

to the procedures set forth in section 11 of the Tax Collection Act, 72 P.S. § 5511.11.  

Due dates on installment tax bills shall match WCASD payment period time lines. 

   (d) Tax collectors shall be compensated for single bill only.  In 

other words, in the case of installment payments, tax collectors will not be compensated 

for each installment, but just for the single bill.  When taxes are paid in installments, the 

tax collectors shall provide payment stubs to WCASD each day on the day they are 

received.  Deposits for installment payments shall be prepared separately from the 

deposits for regular bills, and shall match the installment payment stubs’ total. 

   (e)  For daily collections, tax collectors shall send a daily 

electronic file compatible with WCASD real estate tax record keeping software.  Data 

shall list at a minimum, OCR encoding or invoice number (which shall match the OCR 

encoding or invoice number assigned by WCASD) and the amount paid.  Total taxes 

shall match daily deposit amount. 

   (f)  For tax bills collected through mortgage service companies, 

WCASD requires the following: 

137579.2 



-3- 

    (1)  Except with respect to the contract provisions 

concerning to whom payments shall be made, the tax collectors shall not do anything 

inconsistent with the terms of the contracts (as they may be modified from time to time) 

between WCASD and mortgage service companies.       

(2)  Tax collectors shall require mortgage service 

companies to pay for and obtain a copy of the tax duplicate electronic file from WCASD. 

    (3)  The tax collectors shall require each mortgage service 

company to deliver to WCASD an electronic file of the property owners for which the 

mortgage companies are making payments.      

(g)  Weekly reports shall be delivered by the tax collectors to 

WCASD by the close of business each Friday (or final workday of week).  The first 

report shall list a count of tax bills paid, taxes collected, taxpayer name, OCR encoding 

number, invoice number, parcel number, discounts, penalties, date of collection; and 

shall reconcile to weekly deposits.  The second report shall list a count of bills unpaid, 

taxes uncollected, taxpayer name, OCR encoding number, invoice number, parcel 

number, and amount due. 

   (h)  Monthly reports shall be delivered by tax collectors to 

WCASD by the close of business on the fourth (4th) working day after the month end.  

The first report shall list a count of bills paid, taxes collected, taxpayer name, OCR 

encoding number, invoice number, parcel number, discounts, penalties, date of 

collection; and shall reconcile to monthly deposits.  The second report shall list a count 

of bills unpaid, taxes uncollected, taxpayer name, OCR encoding number, invoice 

number, parcel number, and amount due. 

   (i)  Tax collectors shall deliver the following reports to WCASD 

within four (4) working days after the tax collection period deadlines for Discount, Face, 

and Penalty.  The first report shall list a count of bills paid, taxes collected, taxpayer 

name, invoice number, parcel number, discounts, penalties, and date of collection.  The 

second report shall list a count of bills unpaid, taxes uncollected, taxpayer name, 

137579.2 



-4- 

invoice number, parcel number, and amount due. 

   (j)  Separate weekly and monthly reports and discount, face, 

and penalty period reports shall be prepared in the same manner and delivered within 

the same time frames for interim tax collections as for regular tax collections. 

   (k)  WCASD will release the tax duplicates on June 15 of each 

tax year.  WCASD is responsible for updating the tax duplicates for address changes, 

transfers, etc. and will remit any tax duplicate changes to the tax collectors after the 

initial mailing.  The tax collectors shall promptly prepare rebillings for any changes sent 

by WCASD after the initial mailing. 

   (l)  Tax collectors shall generate and mail regular and full year 

interim tax bills by July 1, or four (4) business days after the mill rate is set, whichever is 

sooner. 

   (m)  WCASD shall provide each tax collector with a monthly 

report of additions to the tax duplicate for interim taxes.  Within ten (10) business days 

after receipt of each monthly report, each tax collector shall mail interim tax notices, and 

each tax collector shall also provide to WCASD an electronic file, compatible with 

WCASD real estate tax record keeping software of interim billing information, including 

OCR encoding number, invoice number, parcel number, taxpayer name, address, tax 

parcel description, location, year, assessment, and discount, face and penalty dates 

and amounts. 

   (n)  Tax collectors shall prepare and mail final notices to 

taxpayers for unpaid tax bills by December 1 of each year.  

   (o)  Tax collectors shall provide written tax certifications and 

duplicate bills, at the request of taxpayers, real estate offices, and other parties and 

entities, for Twenty Dollars ($20.00) each.  Oral confirmation of tax certificates is 

prohibited.  

   (p) At the request of the tax collectors, WCASD shall issue tax 

refunds as a result of appeals, duplicate payments, etc.  For duplicate payments the tax 

137579.2 



-5- 

collectors shall provide to WCASD the canceled checks from the parties who issued the 

duplicate payments, and a letter from both (all) parties designating who shall receive the 

refund.  For all other refunds, the tax collectors shall provide documentation satisfactory 

to WCASD’s internal control standards, to verify that the refund is due. 

   (q)  Tax collectors shall make a final settlement of the tax 

duplicate by June 15th of the applicable tax year. 

   (r) Tax collectors shall comply with the terms of this Resolution, 

District rules and regulations and the laws of the Commonwealth. 

   (s) In compliance with Section 22(b) of the Local Tax Collection 

Law, 72 P.S. 5511.22(b), the tax collectors shall appoint a deputy tax collector in the 

event of the tax collector’s incapacitation and complete such forms as required by the 

Commonwealth to indicate the appointment. 

  3. If Option 2 is selected by a tax collector, he or she shall: 

   (a)  Enter into an agreement with WCASD, which agreement 

shall be substantially the same as the form which is attached hereto and made a part 

hereof and marked Exhibit ”A”.  

   (b)  Pursuant to 72 P.S. §5511.22, deputize the District, any tax 

administrator appointed by the District, and the bank selected by WCASD to collect the 

real estate taxes for WCASD.  

   (c)  Tax collectors shall comply with the terms of this Resolution, 

District rules and regulations and the laws of the Commonwealth. 

  4. On or before February 15, 2021, a copy of this Resolution as 

certified by the Board Secretary, shall be hand delivered or mailed by certified mail, 

return receipt requested, to each of the District’s existing tax collectors, and that a copy 

thereof be published in the same manner as are notices of the Board’s public meetings. 

  5.  All resolutions or parts of resolutions conflicting or inconsistent 

herewith are hereby repealed. 

 
I certify that this is a true and correct copy of the Resolution adopted by the Board of 
137579.2 



-6- 

School Directors of the West Chester Area School District in public meeting on January 

25, 2021 and is made a part of the minutes of that meeting. 

 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Board Secretary 

137579.2 



EXHIBIT “A”  



-2- 

MEMORANDUM AGREEMENT 
 
 In consideration of One Dollar ($1.00) and other good and valuable consideration 
set forth herein, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the WEST CHESTER AREA 
SCHOOL DISTRICT ("District") and____________________, Tax Collector for 
__________________ Township, enter into the following Memorandum Agreement with 
respect to the collection of real estate taxes for the West Chester Area School District for 
the period beginning January 1, 2022, and ending December 31, 2025. 
 
 A. THE DISTRICT SHALL: 
 
  1. Perform all duties of the elected Tax Collector for the School District 
real estate taxes, including the preparation of required reports.  In particular, the District 
shall prepare and mail the tax bills for the above Tax Collector.  Said tax bills shall be 
prepared in the name of the West Chester Area School District and shall contain 
instructions prominently placed upon the bill directing the taxpayer to either send the real 
estate tax payment to the West Chester Area School District, P.O. Box 4787, Lancaster, 
PA 17604 (a lock box controlled by the bank appointed by the School District as 
depositor), or to personally pay said real estate tax payment at the offices of whatever 
bank is designated to collect said taxes on behalf of the District.  In addition, the District 
shall handle all questions from taxpayers and do whatever else is necessary and 
appropriate to carry out the tax collection function. 
 
  2. Pay to the Tax Collector compensation equal to One Dollar ($1.00) 
per annum, plus reasonable documented expenses, not to exceed Twenty Cents ($.20) 
per tax bill.  
 
  3. (a) Said compensation for regular real estate taxes shall be paid 
to Tax Collector within twenty (20) working days after the discount, face and penalty 
period dates specified on the tax bills for said taxes and shall be based upon all tax 
payments processed by the District through its computer as of the end of said period.  To 
the extent tax payments are processed more than fifteen (15) working days after the 
penalty period date, then the compensation relating thereto shall be paid as if it were 
compensation for interim real estate taxes. 
 
   (b) The compensation for interim real estate taxes shall be paid 
on the last day of the month when, by the first of the month, such compensation 
accumulates to Twenty-Five Dollars ($25.00) or more.  Any unpaid balance is to be paid 
at the end of the Tax Collector's elected term6 
 
   (c) Each compensation check shall be accompanied by an 
itemized explanation of the number of bills and time period covered thereby. 
 
  4. Make available a copy of the computer printout of all paid accounts 
on a monthly basis for Tax Collector to pick up at the School District's office during regular 
business hours. 
 
  5. Indemnify and hold harmless Tax Collector against any claims, 
actions, costs, expenses, liabilities, penalties and damages, including counsel fees, 
resulting to Tax Collector from any errors made by School District. 
867700.1 



-3- 

 
  6. Forward all mail received related to Township taxes including 
Township tax payments to the Tax Collector. 
 
 B. THE TAX COLLECTOR SHALL: 
 
  1. Appoint the West Chester Area School District and deputize 
whatever bank the District selects as its depository, as agents to collect and account for 
the School District real estate taxes. 
 
  2. Direct every and all taxpayers of School District real estate taxes to 
pay said taxes to West Chester Area School District as directed on the tax notice. 
 
  3. Forward all mail related to School District real estate taxes including 
tax payments to West Chester Area School District in business reply envelopes furnished 
by the School District, and refuse to accept and refrain from handling monies attempted 
to be tendered by a taxpayer for the payment of West Chester Area School District real 
estate taxes. 
 
  4. Sign any required Commonwealth reports tendered by the School 
District, including the lien list during the week prior to the last business day in February 
and the Tax Collector's report required by Pennsylvania law to be filed with the 
Department of Community Affairs, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Harrisburg, PA. 
 
  5. In compliance with Section 22(b) of the Local Tax Collection Law, 72 
P.S. 5511.22(b), appoint the School District’s Director of Business Affairs as the deputy 
tax collector in the event of the tax collector’s incapacitation and complete such forms as 
required by the Commonwealth to indicate the appointment. 
 
       TAX COLLECTOR FOR: 
 
WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL  ______________________TOWNSHIP 
DISTRICT      CHESTER COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 
 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
President      Tax Collector 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________  DATE:_________________________ 
 

 867700.1 



1/8/2021 BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 1/5

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Book Policy Manual

Section 800 Operations

Title Conflict of Interest

Code 827

Status First Reading

Adopted July 25, 2016

Last Revised March 27, 2017

Purpose
 
This policy shall affirm standards of conduct established to ensure that Board members and
employees avoid potential and actual conflicts of interest, as well as the perception of a conflict of
interest. 
 
Definitions
 
Confidential information shall mean information not obtainable from reviewing a public document
or from making inquiry to a publicly available source of information.[1]
 
Conflict or Conflict of interest shall mean use by a Board member or high level employee of the
authority of his/her office or employment, or any confidential information received through his/her
holding public office or employment, for the private pecuniary benefit of him/herself, a member of
his/her immediate family or a business with which s/he or a member of his/her immediate family is
associated. The term does not include an action having a de minimis economic impact, or which
affects to the same degree a class consisting of the general public or a subclass consisting of an
industry, occupation or other group which includes the Board member or high level employee, a
member of his/her immediate family or a business with which s/he or a member of his/her
immediate family is associated.[1]
 
De minimis economic impact shall mean an economic consequence which has an insignificant
effect.[1]
 
Financial interest shall mean any financial interest in a legal entity engaged in business for profit
which comprises more than five percent (5%) of the equity of the business or more than five percent
(5%) of the assets of the economic interest in indebtedness.[1]
 
High level employee shall mean Superintendent, Assistant Superintendent, Director of Business
Affairs, Assistant Director of Business Affairs, Director of Elementary Education, Director of Facilities
and Operations, Director of Human Resources, Director of Information Technology, Director of Pupil
Services, Director of Secondary Education, principals, assistant principals, any Board Officer, or any
other person employed by the district who files a Statement of Financial Interest under the Ethics Act
or otherwise is responsible for taking or recommending official action of a nonministerial nature with
regard to contracting or procurement, the selection, awarding, administering or monitoring grants or

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=11
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=11
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=11
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=11


1/8/2021 BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 2/5

subsidies, or other activity where the official action has an economic impact of greater than de
minimis nature on the interest of any person.
 
Honorarium shall mean payment made in recognition of published works, appearances, speeches
and presentations, and which is not intended as consideration for the value of such services which
are nonpublic occupational or professional in nature. The term does not include tokens presented or
provided which are of de minimis economic impact.[1]
 
Immediate family shall mean a parent, parent-in-law, spouse, child, spouse of a child, brother,
brother-in-law, sister, sister-in-law, or the domestic partner of a parent, child, brother or sister.[1]
 
Business partner shall mean a person who, along with another person, plays a significant role in
owning, managing, or creating a company in which both individuals have a financial interest in the
company.
 
Business with which a person is associated shall mean a business in which a person is a
director, officer, owner, employee or has a financial interest.
 
Delegation of Responsibility
 
Each high level employee and Board member shall be responsible to maintain standards of conduct
that avoid conflicts of interest. The Board prohibits members of the Board and high level employees
from engaging in conduct that constitutes a conflict of interest as outlined in this policy.
 
Guidelines
 
All Board members and high level employees shall be provided with a copy of this policy and
acknowledge in writing that they have been made aware of it. 
 
Disclosure of Financial Interests
 
No Board member shall be allowed to take the oath of office or enter or continue upon his/her duties,
nor shall s/he receive compensation from public funds, unless s/he has filed a statement of financial
interests as required by law.[2]
 
The district solicitor and designated district employees shall file a statement of financial interests as
required by law and regulations.[3][4]
 
Standards of Conduct
 
The district maintains the following standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest and governing
the actions of its high level employees and Board members engaged in the selection, award and
administration of contracts.[5]
 
No high level employee or Board member may participate in the selection, award or administration of
a contract supported by a federal award if s/he has a real or apparent conflict of interest as defined
above, as well as any other circumstance in which the high level employee, Board member, any
member of his/her immediate family, his/her business partner, or an organization which employs or
is about to employ any of them, has a financial or other interest in or a tangible personal benefit
from a firm considered for a contract.[5]
 
The district shall not enter into any contract with a Board member or high level employee, or his/her
spouse or child, or any business in which the person or his/her spouse or child is associated valued
at $500 or more, nor in which the person or spouse or child or business with which associated is a
subcontractor unless the Board has determined it is in the best interests of the district to do so, and
the contract has been awarded through an open and public process, including prior public notice and
subsequent public disclosure of all proposals considered and contracts awarded. In such a case, the
Board member or high level employee shall not have any supervisory or overall responsibility for the
implementation or administration of the contract.[1]

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=11
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=11
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/051/chapter15/s15.2.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=11&sctn=4&subsctn=0
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/retrieveECFR?gp=&SID=32b03de64b0cecb6170e8e266d34c73e&mc=true&n=pt2.1.200&r=PART&ty=HTML#se2.1.200_1318
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/retrieveECFR?gp=&SID=32b03de64b0cecb6170e8e266d34c73e&mc=true&n=pt2.1.200&r=PART&ty=HTML#se2.1.200_1318
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=11


1/8/2021 BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 3/5

 
When advertised formal bidding is not required or used, an open and public process shall include at a
minimum:

1. Public notice of the intent to contract for goods or services; 
 

2. A reasonable amount of time for potential contractors to consider whether to offer quotes; and 
 

3. Post-award public disclosure of who made bids, quotes, or applications and who was chosen,
except that in the event of an employment application, post-award disclosure need only include
who was selected.

Any Board member or high level employee who in the discharge of his/her official duties would be
required to vote on a matter that would result in a conflict of interest shall abstain from voting and,
prior to the vote being taken, publicly announce and disclose the nature of his/her interest as a
public record in a written statement to be attached to the Board minutes.[1]
 
No Board member or high level employee shall accept an honorarium.[1]
 
Board members and high level employees may neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors or
anything of monetary value from contractors or parties to subcontracts, unless the item is an
unsolicited item and of de minimis or nominal value. Items of de minimis or nominal value shall
include any gift, hospitality, transportation or lodging that may be accepted under the Pennsylvania’s
Ethics Act, but shall be subject to reporting on a Statement of Financial Interest if the value thereof
is such as to require reporting under the Ethics Act.[5][6]  Gifts of a nominal value may be accepted
in accordance with law."
 
Improper Influence
 
No person shall offer or give to a Board member, high level employee or nominee or candidate for
the Board, or a member of his/her immediate family or a business with which s/he is associated,
anything of monetary value, including a gift, loan, political contribution, reward or promise of future
employment based on the offeror's or donor's understanding that the vote, official action or
judgment of the Board member, high level employee or nominee or candidate for the Board would be
influenced thereby.[1]
 
No Board member, high level employee or nominee or candidate for the Board shall solicit or accept
anything of monetary value, including a gift, loan, political contribution, reward or promise of future
employment, based on any understanding of that Board member, high level employee or nominee or
candidate that the vote, official action or judgment of the Board member, high level employee or
nominee or candidate for the Board would be influenced thereby.[1]
 
Organizational Conflicts
 
Organizational conflicts of interest may exist when due to the district’s relationship with a subsidiary,
affiliated or parent organization that is a candidate for award of a contract in connection with
federally funded activities, the district may be unable or appear to be unable to be impartial in
conducting a procurement action involving a related organization.[5]
 
In the event of a potential organizational conflict, the potential conflict shall be reviewed by the
Superintendent or designee to determine whether it is likely that the district would be unable or
appear to be unable to be impartial in making the award. If such a likelihood exists, this shall not
disqualify the related organization; however, the following measures shall be applied:

1. The organizational relationship shall be disclosed as part of any notices to potential contractors; 
 

2. Any high level employees or officials directly involved in the activities of the related
organization are excluded from the selection and award process; 
 

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=11
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=11
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/retrieveECFR?gp=&SID=32b03de64b0cecb6170e8e266d34c73e&mc=true&n=pt2.1.200&r=PART&ty=HTML#se2.1.200_1318
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=11
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=11
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/retrieveECFR?gp=&SID=32b03de64b0cecb6170e8e266d34c73e&mc=true&n=pt2.1.200&r=PART&ty=HTML#se2.1.200_1318


1/8/2021 BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 4/5

3. A competitive bid, quote or other basis of valuation is considered; and 
 

4. The Board has determined that contracting with the related organization is in the best interests
of the program involved.

Reporting Conflicts of Interest
 
Any perceived conflict of interest that is detected or suspected by any employee or third party shall
be reported to the Superintendent. If the Superintendent is the subject of the perceived conflict of
interest, the employee or third party shall report the incident to the Board President.
 
Any perceived conflict of interest of a Board member that is detected or suspected by any employee
or third party shall be reported to the Board President. If the Board President is the subject of the
perceived conflict of interest, the employee or third party shall report the incident to the
Superintendent, who shall report the incident to the solicitor.
 
No reprisals or retaliation shall occur as a result of good faith reports of conflicts of interest.
 
The Superintendent or designee shall report in writing to the federal awarding agency or pass-
through entity any potential conflict of interest related to a federal award, in accordance with federal
awarding agency policy.[7]
 
Investigation
 
Investigations based on reports of perceived violations of this policy shall comply with state and
federal laws and regulations. No person sharing in the potential conflict of interest being investigated
shall be involved in conducting the investigation or reviewing its results. 
 
In the event an investigation determines that a violation of this policy has occurred, the violation
shall be reported to the federal awarding agency in accordance with that agency’s policies.[7]
 
Disciplinary Actions
 
If an investigation results in a finding that the complaint is factual and constitutes a violation of this
policy, the district shall take prompt, corrective action to ensure that such conduct ceases and will
not recur. District staff shall document the corrective action taken and, when not prohibited by law,
inform the complainant.
 
Violations of this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and including discharge, fines and
possible imprisonment. Disciplinary actions shall be consistent with Board policies, procedures,
applicable collective bargaining agreements and state and federal laws.[8]

http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=4b39f7635c77fb585ecaffec27c4f442&mc=true&node=se2.1.200_1112&rgn=div8
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=4b39f7635c77fb585ecaffec27c4f442&mc=true&node=se2.1.200_1112&rgn=div8


1/8/2021 BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 5/5

Legal 1. 65 Pa. C.S.A. 1101 et seq

2. Pol. 004

3. 51 PA Code 15.2

4. 65 Pa. C.S.A. 1104

5. 2 CFR 200.318

6. Pol. 322

7. 2 CFR 200.112

8. Pol. 317

Pol. 011

Pol. 319

Pol. 609

Pol. 702

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=11
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/051/chapter15/s15.2.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=11&sctn=4&subsctn=0
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/retrieveECFR?gp=&SID=32b03de64b0cecb6170e8e266d34c73e&mc=true&n=pt2.1.200&r=PART&ty=HTML#se2.1.200_1318
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=4b39f7635c77fb585ecaffec27c4f442&mc=true&node=se2.1.200_1112&rgn=div8


2021‐2022 Capital Budget

 # of Devices 

Budget 

21‐22

                1,900 796,404.00

 521 561,000.00
1,357,404.00

                1,010 631,250.00

                1,010 858,500.00

 36 47,520.00
1,537,270.00

 30 30,000.00
30,000.00
425,000.00
425,000.00

64  85,193.00
85,193.00

(330,500.00)

Elementary Equipment

Elementary iPad 

Elementary/Special Area Teacher 

Secondary Equipment

6th Grade 1:1

9th grade 1:1 

Music

District

Security Camera 

Network Upgrades

Networking

Administration

Staff (Central + Schools)

Other 

Cost Sharing from Parents

Total Fund 22

(330,500.00) 

3,434,867.00



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

January 25, 2021 SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 
 

CONSENT AGENDA RESOLUTION 
 

Approval of School Board Treasurer’s Report and Statement of Disbursements 
Summary Schedule for the Period of December 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020 

 
The Treasurer’s Report includes the schedules of the School District’s cash balances 
for the General Fund, Activity/Trust Funds, and Cafeteria Fund; the investments 
schedule for the General Fund, Capital Reserve and Capital Project Funds; the 
schedule of disbursements for all funds, and the debit memos and check register for all 
funds. The Statement of Disbursements Summary Lists total expenditures by fund for 
the period.  
 
Approval is requested for the Treasurer’s Report and the disbursements listed on the 
Statement of Disbursements Summary for the period of December 1 to December 31, 
2020 totaling $27,558,981.24.  
 
I so move. 
 
 
 
 
The Treasurer’s Report is available in its entirety on the business office webpage and in 
the Board Meeting packet posted on School Board webpage at www.wcasd.net.  Please 
contact the School Board Secretary for any hard copies of the report. 
 
 
John T. Scully 
School Board Treasurer  
 
 
 

http://www.wcasd.net/


























































WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

January 25, 2021 SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 
 

CONSENT AGENDA RESOLUTION 
 

Approval of the December 31, 2020 Financial Report 
 

Approval is requested for the West Chester School District Financial Report for the month 
ending December 31, 2020.  
 
I so move. 
 
2020-2021 General Fund Financial Analysis 
 
The expenses and revenues as of December 2020 represent 6 months of financial activity for 
the District.  To date we have collected $172.9 million in real estate taxes which represents 
100% of our budget.  Outstanding taxes not collected by December 31st will be liened and 
submitted to the County on January 15 for collection in accordance with PA tax collection law. 
Year-to-date we have collected $651,561 in interim taxes which is more than last year.  We will 
continue to receive interim tax revenues throughout the remainder of the school year and are 
optimistic that we will reach our budget of $825,000. 
 
The second largest local revenue category is Earned Income Tax which is 7.7% ahead of last 
year’s collections.  This is most likely caused by the extension in the due date for final payments 
(due April 15, 2020) until July 15, 2020 as a result of the pandemic.  We will continue to monitor 
EIT closely this year to provide an updated trend.  We have received $2.5 million in transfer 
taxes year to date, this amount is ahead of last year and is the result of the size and timing of 
property transfers within the District.  
 
Our local revenues YTD total $187.3 million or 93.13% of budget.  State revenues are on target 
with budget, the largest component to date is $3.6 million in gaming revenues and other 
subsidies are trending in line with last year.  Federal revenues are also on target with budget.   
 
We have made some revisions to our expenses for the 2020-21 school year. The revisions 
include a $273,068 reduction of salaries and benefits related to average teacher salary, a 
reduction in salaries related to aides in the amount of $150,000 and a reduction in custodial 
salaries of $250,000.  We have reduced our educational supplies projection by $1,091,773 as a 
result of school PPA and departmental building carryover forfeitures as well as a PPA 
adjustment due to lower than anticipated enrollment. We have reduced Professional and 
technical services and other contracted aides by $800,000 and have reduced our variable debt 
service expense for the 2020-21 year in the amount of $250,000. In September we increased 
our projections in the following categories to recognize the spending related to the CARES grant 
funding and includes: salaries and benefits $71,500, prof and tech services $101,799 and 
supplies $667,932.  In August we refinanced an existing GOB and recognized $1.5 million in 
savings.  This amount was transferred to the capital reserve fund. 
 
And as you can see on the statement, we have budgeted $269.8 million in expenses and $248.5 
million in revenues this year and we budgeted to use $21.3 million of our fund balance to close 
the gap between the expenses and revenues.  
 



Our fund balance is projected to be $39.3 million at June 30th 2021, but we are currently 
anticipating a $6.0 million budget gap after an Act 1 index tax increase for the 2021-22 school 
year.  This concludes the financial report. 
 
John T. Scully  
School Board Treasurer 































 

  

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

January 25, 2021 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 
 
 

Approval of the Memorandum of Agreement between the Chester 
County Health Department and the West Chester Area School District 
regarding participation in the Project Assisting Childhood Education 
through Increased Testing (ACE-IT) 
Approval is requested of the Memorandum of Agreement between the Chester County 
Health Department and the West Chester Area School District regarding participation in 
the Project Assisting Childhood Education through Increased Testing (ACE-IT). 
 
I so move. 

 
 
Approval of Motion to Approve the Skills for Life Charter School 
Application, as Amended and Supplemented 
Approval is requested of motion to approve the Skills for Life Charter School 
Application, as Amended and Supplemented. 
 
I so move. 
 

 
Approval of Motion to Deny the Skills for Life Charter School 
Application, as Amended and Supplemented 
Approval is requested of motion to deny the Skills for Life Charter School Application, as 
Amended and Supplemented. 
 
I so move. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 

THE COUNTY OF CHESTER 

 

COMMISSIONERS                                      

Marian Moskowitz 

Josh Maxwell 

Michelle Kichline 

 

JEANNE E. CASNER, MPH, PMP 

County Health Director                                          

CHESTER COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT  

Chester County Government Services Center 

601 Westtown Road, Suite 290 

West Chester, PA  19380-0990 

610-344-6225   FAX: 610-344-6727 

www.chesco.org/health 

 

“Protecting You and Your Environment” 
 

 
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 

between 
Chester County Health Department  

and 
West Chester Area School District 

 

This Memorandum of Agreement made this 25th day of January, 2021 sets for the terms and understanding between 
the Chester County Health Department and the West Chester Area School District to participate in the Project ACE-IT 
(Assisting Childhood Education through Increased Testing) program.  

 

Summary 
Project ACE-IT (Assisting Childhood Education through Increased Testing) is a school-based COVID-19 testing program 
across the five counties in Southeastern Pennsylvania. The program offer rapid, point-of-care testing strategies in 
school settings. The purpose of ACE-IT is to provide schools with point-of-care rapid testing as a mitigation strategy in 
the fight against COVID-19. Such testing, in combination with a school’s COVID-19 Health and Safety Plan, aims to 
protect staff and students from exposure to COVID-19 and limit the transmission of COVID-19 on school campuses and 
school buses, and provide additional information in assessing the safety of in-person instruction, and extracurricular 
activities hosted on campus. Through the program schools have access to the Abbott BinaxNOWTM COVID-19 Ag Card 
antigen   kits and the CueTM COVID-19 molecular test. ACE-IT is a part of the Nation's Coronavirus Testing Strategy as 
the testing supplies were provided by the Federal government.  
 
Abbott BinaxNOW COVID-19 Ag Card 
The BinaxNOW COVID-19 Ag Card is a rapid, point-of-care antigen test administered using a nasal swab in the front 
area of the nostril and provides COVID-19 results in 15 minutes. These tests are accurate, with accuracy rates of 97%-
98% in symptomatic individuals, and approximately 65%-70% when used for routine surveillance. Unexpected antigen 
test results – symptomatic people receive a negative result, or asymptomatic people receive a positive result – are 
followed up with confirmatory PCR (molecular) test. The BinaxNOW COVID-19 Ag Card is authorized for use under an 
Emergency Use Authorization (EUA) by the Federal Food and Drug Administration (FDA). 
 
Antigen tests are immunoassays that detect the presence of a specific viral antigen, which implies current viral 
infection. Antigen tests are currently authorized to be performed on nasopharyngeal or nasal swab specimens placed 
directly into the assay’s extraction buffer or reagent. Per the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), antigen 
tests perform best when viral load is high in both asymptomatic and symptomatic persons and are informative in 
diagnostic testing situations in which the person has a known exposure to a person with COVID-19. Due to the evidence 
of COVID-19 in asymptomatic persons, antigen tests are one approach tool for identifying infection prior to, or in the 
absence of, symptoms.  
 
 

 

https://www.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/abbott-binaxnow-fact-sheet.pdf
https://www.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/abbott-binaxnow-fact-sheet.pdf
https://www.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/abbott-binaxnow-fact-sheet.pdf
https://www.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/abbott-binaxnow-fact-sheet.pdf
https://www.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/abbott-binaxnow-fact-sheet.pdf
https://www.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/abbott-binaxnow-fact-sheet.pdf
https://www.cuehealth.com/


2 
 

Cue COVID-19 Test 
The Cue COVID-19 Test is a rapid, point-of-care molecular, or diagnostic, test. The test is accurate based on a 98% 
specificity and 99% sensitivity. The Cue COVID-19 Test is authorized for use under an Emergency Use Authorization 
(EUA) by the Federal Food and Drug Administration (FDA). 

 
Molecular nucleic acid amplification tests (NAAT) detect the SARS-CoV-2 virus genetic material. They are more 
accurate than other methods such as antigen tests. The Cue COVID-19 Test uses isothermal nucleic acid amplification 
technology for the molecular amplification reaction that is an equivalent alternative amplification method to 
polymerase chain reaction (PCR).  

 
Test Strategies 
Project ACE-IT will implement testing through two strategies: 

 Symptomatic Testing – Testing performed on students and staff who present with COVID-19 like symptoms while 
on campus or on buses. Such testing may include and limited to testing in-school close contacts of students and 
staff who test positive for COVID-19. This testing strategy is not for use of close contacts from the community. 
This strategy provides quicker identification of positive individuals and reduces barriers for obtaining a COVID-
19 test outside of school. 

 Screening/Surveillance Testing – Routine, consistent testing performed on staff and/or students regardless of 
symptoms. Such testing is most beneficial when it is consistent, and a significant number of individuals 
participate over a period of time. This strategy increases the potential for preventing COVID-19 from entering 
the campus.  

 
Both testing strategies allow schools to act quickly and provide the appropriate information based upon test results. 

 
Project Partners 
Project ACE-IT has been a collaboration between the PolicyLab at Children’s Hospital of Philadelphia (CHOP), Chester 
County Health Department, County Intermediate Units, and School Districts. Each contributes to the project as follows: 

 
Children’s Hospital of Philadelphia’s 
PolicyLab 

• Allocate and disburse tests to health department 
• Convene partners for planning purposes 
• Provide training and technical assistance for implementation 
• Implement electronic platform to support testing 
• Identify and support solutions that promote participation in ACE-IT 

 
County Intermediate Units and 
School Districts 
 

• Identify schools for participation 
• Develop testing approach for participating schools 
• Attend training 
• Conduct testing 
• Identify and support solutions that promote participation in ACE-IT 

 
Chester County Health Department • Provide public health leadership 

• Support medical compliance 
• Support testing implementation 
• Manage and serve as point of contact for logistics of test 

distribution and inventory management 
• Conduct case investigation on individuals receiving positive results 
• Identify and support solutions that promote participation in ACE-IT 

 



3 
 

Authorization to Use of Tests 
BinaxNOW Ag Card Test kits used for diagnostic or screening testing, and the Cue COVID-19 Test used for diagnostic 
testing, are authorized when Clinical Laboratory Improvement Amendments (CLIA) regulations are met. The Chester 
County Health Department has obtained a CLIA waiver for the use of these tests through the Pennsylvania Department 
of Health. The CLIA waiver holds the Health Department accountable for the proper storage, handling, use, disposal 
and training of these tests. As such, the Health Department has established the minimum requirements for 
participating on Project ACE-IT as specified in the “Minimum Participation Requirements” section.  

 
Additionally, on December 17, 2020, the Pennsylvania Secretary of Health issued an order authorizing the use of 
satellite testing locations for COVID-19 with authorizes the use of multiple locations for testing. In this Order, the 
Chester County Health Department serves as the “Oversight Laboratory” and any school or school administration 
building utilizing rapid, point-of-care tests. The order calls for the following requirements of the Chester County Health 
Department for use of rapid, point-of-care tests at satellite locations: 

1. Each Satellite Testing Location has been approved as a location where testing may be performed under the 
Oversight Laboratory’s CLIA Certificate.  

2. The Oversight Laboratory has confirmed that each Satellite Testing Location has been approved to participate 
as a Satellite Testing Location by the chief school administrator and the school governing body.  

3. The Oversight Laboratory has determined that the facility of each Satellite Testing Location is suitable to operate 
as a Satellite Testing Location.  

4. The Oversight Laboratory has confirmed that one or more health care professionals will be on the premises of 
the Satellite Testing Location at all times when Authorized Tests are being offered.  

5. The Oversight Laboratory will ensure the testing supplies and Authorized Tests are stored and administered in 
accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions.  

6. The Oversight Laboratory has established a mechanism to provide all results of all Authorized Tests performed 
at all Satellite Testing Locations to the PA Department of Health within 24 hours of the results being available at 
the Satellite Testing Location. 
 

Minimum Participation Requirements 
Public School Districts and County Intermediate Units participating in Project ACE-IT must agree to the following 
minimum requirements: 

 Approval of the chief school administrator and the school governing body to participate in the project as 
evidence by signature confirmation of understanding and agreement with this MOA. 

 Obtain necessary consent from staff and parent/guardian for students who will be tested. A standard consent 
form will be provided for use.  

 Agree to comply with all standing orders (medical order and specific instructions from a medical practitioner to 
administer a medication to an individual in defined circumstances) as issued by the Chester County Health 
Department and approved by its Public Health Physician.  

 Attend all required training to administer Abbott’s BinaxNOW Ag Card Test kits and the Cue kit per manufacturer 
specifications. Training will be provided to school districts and intermediate units. 

 Agree to prioritize use of the tests as follows: 
o Symptomatic staff and students on campus/buses 
o Screening of students and staff in high-touch classrooms 
o Screening of in-person teachers 
o Screening of bus drivers 
o Screening of all other in-person school staff 
o Screening of all other in-person students, if supplies allow 

https://www.health.pa.gov/topics/Documents/Diseases%20and%20Conditions/SOH%20Order%20Satellite%20Testing%20Locations.pdf
https://www.health.pa.gov/topics/Documents/Diseases%20and%20Conditions/SOH%20Order%20Satellite%20Testing%20Locations.pdf


4 
 

 Submission of test plan for each location utilizing Abbott’s BinaxNOW Ag Card Test kits to include physical space 
and staffing. Test plan will be to confirm site suitability by the Chester County Health Department.  

 Compliance and accountability for the proper storage, handling, use, disposal of Abbott’s BinaxNOW Ag Card 
Test kits, Cue swab and all ancillary supplies. Training for proper storage, handling, use and disposal will be 
provided.  

 Agree to submit all required data to the Chester County Health Department and the Pennsylvania Department 
of Health, as required by law, using the standard data platform provided by Children’s Hospital of Philadelphia’s 
PolicyLab. Use of the data system provided by CHOP meets this requirement.  

 Compliance and accountability for the protection of personal and health information per the Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) or School District/Intermediate Unit Board Policies governing 
HIPAA/FERPA. 

 Compliance with current Chester County Health Department School Guidance. Participation in this program does 
not waive the use of other COVID-19 mitigation strategies.  

 All unused supplies and materials returned to the Chester County Health Department at the end of the program. 
 

This Memo of Agreement contains the full understanding of the parties. Any modifications to be effected are to be in 
writing signed by the parties.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered their duly authorized signatures below on the date first set forth 
above. 

 
 

Chester County Health Department   

   

   

   

Jeanne E. Casner, MPH, PMP 
County Health Director 

 Date 

     
  
 

West Chester Area School District   Board of School Directors of the  
West Chester Area School District 

   

   

Dr. James R. Scanlon  Chris McCune 

   

Superintendent of Schools  President, Board of School Directors 

   

   

Date  Date 

 



MOTION 

The West Chester Area School District Board of School Directors hereby approves the 

Skills for Life Charter School application, as amended and supplemented.  The specific terms of 

the approval  shall be controlled by  the charter which is  incorporated herein by reference. 

 

ATTEST:     WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT  

BOARD OF SCHOOL DIRECTORS 

 

_________________________  By: ______________________________ 

Linda Cherashore, Board Secretary         Chris McCune, Board President 

 

Date:  January 25, 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

MOTION 

The West Chester Area School District Board of School Directors hereby denies the 

Skills for Life Charter School application, as amended and supplemented.  The  specific terms of 

the denial shall be controlled by a written adjudication which is incorporated herein by reference. 

 

ATTEST:     WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT  

BOARD OF SCHOOL DIRECTORS 

 

_________________________  By: ______________________________ 

Linda Cherashore, Board Secretary         Chris McCune, Board President 

 

Date:  January 25, 2021 

 

 


	a 2021.01.25 Board Agenda
	b 2020.12.21 Dec 21 Meeting Minutes draft
	c 1.25.2021 Personnel Reco
	d 2021.01.25 Consent Agenda
	e 2021.01.11 Ed Comm Minutes
	f Pupil Serv Comm I so Move
	PS I so move January 2021
	PS Comm Meeting Minutes 011121
	Rev Policy 113.1 Disc of Students w Disabilities, Comm rev
	Rev Policy 113.2 Behavior Intervention, Jan 21 PS rev
	Rev Policy 113.4 Conf of SpEd Stu Info review 1.21 PS

	g 1.26.21 PFC Action Item packet
	1.25.21 PFC ACTION items
	Property & Finance Committee
	January 25, 2021 – ACTION ITEMS

	1.19.21 PFC Committee Minutes (002)
	Tax Collector Resolution 2021
	Other pages Tax collector agreement 2021
	Policy 827 - Conflict of Interest
	ARIAL 2021-2022 Capital 22_01062021

	j1 2021.01 January Treasurer's Report packet
	Dec 2020 treasurers report
	2021.01 January Treasurer's Report
	Statement of Disbursements Summary 12.1 thru 12.31

	j2 2021.01 January Financial Report packet
	Dec 2020 finreport
	Rev and Exp Rpt 12.1 thru 12.31.20

	j3ACE-IT School MOA January 2021
	j4 j5Other Business SFLCS Application 1.21.21



